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1| OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue
Revenue has increased by

over 82% in the last 3 years

frem £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ cover 1,690
pecple

Carbon offsets

Qur renewakble encrgy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
n the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewsble
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive’'s review |

Cur Group was 1 & 50 d posiion cormng out of : vale of ous erergy divis 011 was
tre lockdown response to Covid-19, and our D osupported by scud operausnal performance across
busimess has continued 1o perform robLstly ail sectars and some Organic growtn 0 nawer

trroughout e year Thes year has seen some SECIOTS

wnforecasted growth N vaiue of certan divisions

We rernaimn a sugr
1,650 fuil time staff across the businesses that we ;

srive eraplover, with more than

primarity drven by the «ncresse in enerqy pnices

Fern Srading Limited {"the Cormparny” ar togeimer own and ooerate. and Indirect emigicym™

with its supsicdhares "ine Group’) argets consistent provided for rurdreds mere peocle thrcugh
growth for shareholders aover tre long termr, with a contracts that we have 'n place

frcus on steady and credictab.e growt, this 5

ol ) A reftection on our year

artcularly imzortant during maore challenging ‘ . )
partcuiany , - e gre Our busness raised £E4G4m frorr investos this year
cconomic corditors We have a diversiied and . ; e . B . . ) - }
dgeliveres Consistent ravenLas waie growing capg w@.

mMature boziness befitn Croup witn mrore thar . .
fhee 9 alroup e der.oyment, ress trg in £712m in reverae

iz yea*s of tracing K story and amibition The Grouc

i

2021 £425m) ar o net

ot oo~ o
comprses rnore than 300 corrpan.es trat rave : 188 rectated)
oporated in a range of 2ectors over rmany yoars : :
gereorating s ey lorg-term growih for cur ¢ Tre fmancial statements for the year show an ;
sharﬁhnldwr We operaie in essental sectors that I aperat ng proft pefore tax of £42m against our

Wi expect to perform stead ly through rmarket dtcome of a smali accountng profr. This
volat liny. DoronLs

produced by the group beng soid for b gher oric

p=s

cerformance 5 g drect e,Jlf of erergy

M
0

from secyre pase we have beer: able 1o ado

! : ) ] ‘ cunng the year Amost 607% of our Busimess
incrermreantal expansion and diversificatonir a . i . e
corprizes renewable energy generati~g asseis such

o rert S < p t - reunties | )
MESSLEC iy NT0LYN SESdNG Out SOROMUNEES T | oo i o eroy s tes and wing farms, which orovide

rew adjacent sectors These sectors provide us e T e e L
i long term reverue sireamns 1n1ess are ntentoraly
with a platform o contrue o expand N une with ‘

civersifod across a range of rechne.sgies 1o ritigate

eqgy Today, our Group comprises .
=9y ay. our G o aga nst poor performarce N a snecific sector and
N=lg

energy property .ending, healthcare nfrasruchure

] comr buie wowards steady, precictable share once
fore and ~cuse budirg dvizions. We Rave grow”

growt, however, tmerr va.ues can st be mpactad

to be & sgrnifcant oresence withie our most : . '
- ) u 7 - - 1 by charges in pricing and demand. We have seer )

estatlished sectors, producirg 4.2% of e UK’z : s s

17% ! consecutve and matenzl increases 17 lono e
sclar energy ana 1.7% of tre UK's grsbore wind : i
EE e RS onsho P oerergy proe forecasts and enery forwars rates :
encrgy outfut and o 3 £281m shiort and : R— :
&y e nd = : g{ob Ly cver the last 15 raonts a5 e giskal :
redium terr e d ire t fac utates the : ;
‘ ng busiress : acutates t i economy recovers from the Cov d-19 canderic, |
[~

constructor and irrprovernent of nomes ~
- S Freme ! and seeks aterranve scurtes of energy as a result of
roUGno L tne UKL :

the conflics e Ukrame, Alorg wh rfaton, these

over tne patl 12 moniTs, we
0f A% growt DEF aNNur T he extracroltary growth
iz atirbutacle o our erergy aivton, warch has

Lenefitiag from 2 sigmficant norease o lorg-ter : o i

energy proe

‘oo salar

M end

over tre pericd. i addition 1o n
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Chief Executive’'s review

markets and starting c
farm in Australia. At the start of the year we adaed

onstruction on a large wind

aine adaditionai sites 1o our reserve power divisior
WIICH Drnngs us up o 26 sdes in wial icompared to
ten sites for most of 2021) Theze sites nave
nerforrmed aread of expectatons, generating
EBITDA of £20m (2UZ2L. £2m) duning the year

CLur successtul and wel -2stanlished biomass
division cantindes to perform well and has

e retLrrs since acquisition in 201%

o]

o

<

D

T

O

w

—
Yo
o

This year, | have becr garucularly pleased to sea

strong performance at our newest biomass site n

Srederton, Bast Anglia, wiich was acquires in Aorit
2021, proving o be a valuacie add-hon o e
pLsiness. Dunng the year we curchased a Waste-
to-Energy faciity currently urnder corstruchion in
Ayrshre. Tre facility has been :in development for
three years ano will e cagable of processng over
185,600 tornes per annum of non-recyclable
nousehold, ©

othierwize be sent to landhnlk

ommiercial and ndustral waste which
would or exporied
This will generate 17 MWe of low carbon electricity,
ernough to power 30,000 homes It wilt be the firs:
large-sca.e, subsidy free waste—to—erergy‘ project in
western Scotlend and prolected cormpletion date is
inearly 2024,

Owver recent years, many of our energy assels have
heern under construction which mas contributed w©
our previously repored accounting losses. Thig 12
typical of such businesses during growth phase
even when cash generative, because finance costs
and accounring C

exceadad revenues. This aivision nas now reached

harges, such ac depreciation,

OUr targer size and sector spit.

Accord' ngly this year { am gleased to report an
accounting profit befors rax of £48m against cur
budgetes small accounting profit. Trus slightly
larger than expected orofit s due to the maturity of
the portfclio and higher energy prices; resulting in
ncreased revenue frorm our energy division as well

as anincrease in iNflation {as explained below)

Cur procerty lending busines: makes up around
27% of the Group and comprises short ard medium
terrm secured (0ans to experienced propery
orofess'onals This establshed part oF our business
contnued to perform well, fodowirg a short penod
of slow down during Cowv:d-19 when we
intent.onally chose o wrte fewer lcans Our average
loan bock was 182 toang this year to UK corrowe’s

Cur lending drvision has awedys ope-ated at
conservative ar o value levels {beow /0%
ordor that it maintans access to vauasle s ‘-:uréty If

IS

173

there s a reduction in progerty values This strategy
ras served the Group well since inceplion ‘2 Years
ago, and it has ceeraed through cersds of change

severgl urres The Group s tak.ng a naturally
cautous appreach when assessing rew lending
opportunities in ight of the charging economic
outlook To date, the Group has lert £2.20n of
procerty loans since inception in 2010, suffening
only £6m in capita loszes. Tris strong frack record
s the result of cur carefuc approach in ts sector,
compreing discpuaned due diigence, conservatve
woan-to-value ratios and an ability ard wilingness 1o
redLce activity in this sector during trnes of
economic unceriainty We will continue o adopt

this approach tnroughout the corming year.

The realincare division rmakes up around 4% of the
CGroup and is broadly performing welt Our
etirement villages busness, Rangeford Heldings
Limited {"Rangeford’) continaed t¢ sell apartmenss
ar three sites, commrerced construction of a fourth
village in Chertsey, and acquired a Afth location
near Cambndge during the year 5Sales at tne
Cherisey site are expected to commerce in 2024,
wrlle construction at tne Cambridge site s

cted to start n 2023 with the first sales
cormmencing in 2026

([\

Qur fibre dwision was established in 2019 and
rerrains an area of growth for the Group, now
comprising of six operating businesseas, Our
residental businesses, Jurassic Fbre, Swsh Fibre,

g 3
Sl iriiuas
it ean ‘u 4
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e are buhding uiratast
Cand networ<s in

Grgaret and Allpoins Fibre
"Mlare o the premises’ oreas
ragions of the JK wnicr have been overoo<es by

larger operalers

gare: provides connecinly 1o
hores and busimesses across the UK usirg thyﬁbre

rd Operreacr infrastruciure anc Vitnfiis a software
gevelopm come ,mj which has deve'nped
propr\etary Software t alow inter-et Service

~anled

Prov ders 1w osel conreciviy over who esate
networks, mc\udmg A:lpomts Finre, Vorboss is the
UK's enly dedicated enterprise Sbre network to focus

on provding cortectity to DUSINESSES I LoNcon

In tne year cur 1

contmaed o iny
r\.ezworks n tf"-e Home C
S0 atwvess o Ef'gtarwd, ana are Now onooarding
customers o ther networks, generating reCuring

or the Group Cur state-of-The-art

revanue
nesworks are able to rreet customer demana for
hugher broadbacd speeds regquirec as a resuil of

rmore working-frorm-nome a-d ncreased |

vie or-ceriand services. In London, Vorsoss has

aizo cortinued 1o baad and has

EOD«m of fiore with a comrmurment to offer 10GEps
0 15000 bus

thre o up

by 2027

Wreilst our fbre aiv.sior remans i & growts prase
for the naxt 2 report

an aczounting oraf

Towards the erd of the year, we added & rew
property developer (G the Group, w ik the acousition
of Etivia Hornes

fafniiy Forres in Lordon commuter towns are

Groun, We DA 0 Grow 11N 3 1T gasurad way over
deliver

£00 romes ser yean, nolud g 200 hen quaity

sre mext five years win an e a*gm w

affordabie romes. Eovia nzs a S:rOﬂg ex-shirg

leadersp tearm who arc key fo running & CUsiness,

3 aveTy sma. part ot ine

i Inflation and Interest rates

! The hgher -ate of irflaticn experanced this year
has been responsible for some of the

I cutperformance ajar st expectations M the

C:-ﬂ“-paﬂy's shiare price =M Treasury forecast toat

don s tkely to be cresent untl 2025 ac a

Car erergy stes benefrfirom, mcreasmg
te value of tngse sites However, a short pericd of
Eomgh nflation such as “orecast has very litle er.ect
Do the rae at which the C—rou: is expecied to Grov

Thiz s because 17 renswable S e Owy
denve 1ne o value fom discountad orojecied Tuture

m™Me they are ex

operate for typ cally 20 yéars or more T the

outlesk for ong-term rfiat.on were 1o rorease, e

impact on our share proe shouic be positive

because it would morease the rovenus each of cor
sites would expect to make ir conrast to &

Torelatvely hixed cost 0ass

Tre expected rise 1n interes: rates s foracast 1o
Poreturt o Torma after g significart pernco of very

IOW 13185 T he rrmediate 1my e our

buirest i expectaed to be broady neutral sin
aur Group s Irenicnaly siractured $o a3 Not to

XPEMNENCE SIgNITCant va.Le croson when inte
rates charge We cornue (o take a cautous
approach withir cur iending ous ngss where tna
rising Interest raies are fel more closely, and we
have tn2 aCuly 10 recuce e nurrber of Cans
our loans

we write, or alter the rizk prodle of

Trrough reducirg ioan o value ral os or 03LsNg
Poactwty ncertar parts of tre marke? snow.d thar

fee appronagte
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Current trading and outlook
Since the year end, tae Group has continued to
oerform steadily frorn an operational perspective
and in Lne with our expeciations albelt we nave
seen share price growlh ahead of target due to the
contirued increase i long term energy grice
forecasts Cur growth targets for the Group over
the rmedium and iong terrn remain unchangea, and
ve contiriue to focus on mamntaining a diversifed
nusiness that 1s capable of aelivenrg more

oredictable growth for sharehoders,

The recerty anaounced Electricity Generator Levy
"EGL within the 2023 Finarce Bill, wilt have an
mpact o0 the retuns generated fror our energy
Dortfciio over the next 5 years Tris s further

discusses in the group finance review N page 27

Cur preperty wending husiness contnues to
perform srongly, with increased deployment in this
sector since he year end We focus on short term
©ans {our average current loan term s L7 monihs;
whicn enables us to adapt to changes in outlock
swifthy, we feel this s partcalarly imsoertant in the
current economic climate

o

erforrmance in cur reatthcare division continueas
le, ard we continue to reman positve

» opportunties 1o irrprove perfarmance in

Since yeas end, we have contnued to buld out our
fibre networks, with construcior tracking .n lire
with qur expectauons. We contirue (o review
orporunines for both organic and irorganic
growth suppo-ting our existing Managerment tearms
ir deiiverirg this strategy

Ir: Cecember 2022 we have acquired the rights tc
E£25m of ngrt to use mobiie licenses from Three
UK, thus making the first step towards becoming anr

mcile virual network operator

Our mix of bus'ness areas nas developea over time
and may evoive furtrner over the years ahead, driven
oy the overarcning imporance we place on
rmeating the ob’ectives of our snareholders This
should net be read as any indicasion of a who.esaie
change In tine sectars in whicn we cperate, but as a
reflection of the role clayed by the strategic
rmandate in protecting sharehciders nterests.

“Qur mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”




Our business at a glance
What we do

Ferr Trading Linited "Fern’ s the parent company

of nea"ly 220 subsidaries together the "Group’) Our

g, hiore and house ouding, Over
re we have oult a carefuly
*s tha are

diversified group of operating busin
well positoned to delver long-term value and

predictabie growth for our sharenolders

1. Energy division
We generate power from sustanable sources and
zell the energy produced eff-er directy o indust ai

CONIUMErs of to arge Networss Ma'zy ot our

recewable anorgy $1es gquatfy for govarnmean:

incentives, whien reprasect an addiberal source of

ircome We mave also utibied our experise n

renewaly e encrgy (o corstruct facilities for saie o

oroorg operat on Al year end the Group rad
21 Sites unNaer Construction

2. Healthcare division

We provide Fomes aod lesere Tacliues (o s

age: f‘\’j ponuUanen, and prvae hosptals woich
provide hich-gua. ty healthcare services acros:
o)l ratwc,r‘dl e LI

Solar, wind,

3. Lending division
We lend on
Basiz oo
We also provide “nancing ¢ enable other ousiness

short ard medium enm, secured

g€ rorrper of property o

anc other residentiat amcj

4. Fibre division

We own and coerate fibre broadh dmd METWOTRS
acrass vanous areas of the U< We buld the
networks and cennect them 1 nomes and

bus resses 1o orovide our customers with ultrata

Shre broadband,

i

5. Home building division
Curng tre yoar, we sucoessiully enterad trie Mouse
pundinig secior, acguiri~g Elvig Homes wn ch has 8

srong rack recod of developirs

sustairanle manrer The company 1€ 3 iul-service

preperty developen, mearing it provides servicas

fromy the dos gn to the engieer rg ard then inat
COrstrucuo. 1o encure the delivery of quality

OrAransmig.

biormnass Property lending, Retirement Ultrafast fibre Residential house
landfil a'S development vitlages, private broadband across buildin
9as. financing hospitals the UK 9

reserve power

!
|
:
|

{
i
{
i
|
i
{
i
i
!
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Our business at a glance

The srergth of ocur Group's strategy 1S 11 Both s
operatcnal diversity and the return profie of these
businesses Our iendirg business provides flex bilty
and strong returns over the short term, while cur
energy. nealtncare, fibre and home baidng
awisiors offer visioilty and stability of returns over
the orge- term

The sca.e of our business i3 a key strength, e-abing
us o acgulre large-scale establisned operations as
well as the opporurity W enter new sectors with
rinir-al nek to the whowe Group by selecting

Sector split’

Wird 22% -,

Solar 20%

Rezerve power 6% —
Cther 3% -

€9%
31%

BB Owning and operating assets
HB¥E Lending

Fern's sector
allocation

pusinesses with comprehensve pusiness plars a

sirorg maragement teams This ersbles us to
continue to diversify cur cusineass wiiout
compromisng on tne guality of our operations

Over the past three years, we Rave successfully

entered the fibre broacbana secior ard we now
own Six companries with exciinig plans o deliver
dltrafast broadband accoss the UK

- Healtncare 1%

- Property 27%

-~ Reserve power 2%
- Solar 1%

--Fibre 5%

3
o

“.Heslthcare 4%

| --LandAll gas and biomass 9%

‘Sector split s grven by value, as represerted o the commpany balance sheet of Forn Trading Lirnited.
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Our business at a glance

Whare we operate

We are proud hat tne busireszes
with n our Group rrake a positive
cornbution to socety, from
gerneraling clean erergy 10 the
craation of nermes and tne provizion

auality healthcare nfrastiucture.

OREra®-

Heso tals

-
3

Ficre nenwerks

AS weve Growr our expert se it

—

take our exoert.se o exciing Sonoor

Austrana, rrance. lreland, 2cland a7d Fin

e our Industry <nowied

ciar ard wird farms n

1o e
gz <

o
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference

Group that makes a
K.
lity
infrastructure and retirement ivng a

We are proud to operae a
positive contributicon to society acress the U
generating enewanie enargy, providing Guals
neathcare ri

celvernng nigh-speed broachand o underserved
a5 of 1he codrtry.

Energy

Ve curerty own ZJU energy sites, grocuning
375CW 3 yesr That's enougn encrgy 10 poswer over
a milior homes

rowand,

)
C
{
©
2
&)
oy
O
o
o]
o
O
S
]
o
@]
te}
m
[¥]
[%4]
Q
W

well heping the LA o
=15 Irrespeciive of the weat

The Fern Community fund is a social enterprise run
by the Groun, which works © distrbute commen Ty
funds generated from our wind farms, Tis year, the
Ferri Cormmunity Fund has
commrunity grouns, supported 13 loca, unversity
students throush our Studert Scholarsh ¢ Furd,

and provided a w riter fue
wng are local 1o the Gro

awarded £1.4m o loca.

{ subsidy to 708 residents
Up's assets.

Healthcare

Our retirement villages provide hig~-guaiity.
contemporary lving spaces, with 379
accommaodation unts v:uvemty ' opace, and
schemes in vancus stages of development oferirg

over 500 additiona. accemmoaaton umits

A friendly
retirerrent vikages, which is why in our

community is at the heart of cur
develzpments we provide central facilities and a
" of social activity “or our residents,

Lending
The loans we made curng the year have helped o
fund the censtruction of student accoramaodation

a1d much needec rezidential preperties

We conunue to extend loans to 24 taxi drivers and
flee:s o erable therm o use elecir.c vehicles,
reducing carbon emissions In our capital

Fibre

Through our fbre division we are bulding cut the
fisre octic breadbend network acress the UK Four
of our management teams are focussed on
bBuilaing
residential cusiomers ang

fifth is ouilding a fibre network 1o deliver enterprise

out ibre optic broadband networks for
small businesses, and a

conrectvity Cur sixth s a software development
comoany operatng in the fibre sector and

providirg services to our group corpanies

Withir this division we have plans to create a

network Lroviaing Connecivity 1o over one mi. on
properties it the next three years,
owns and vilages that dom't currently

many of which
are in smait ic

ave aCCess 1o rernaet connecny by T ! S
have access 12 nternet connectivity <t for modern
ways of working and communicating

Not only are our 9ore businesses bringing

connectvity to underserved commuriies, thay are

also generatng emigioyment opporiunities

young Indmaduals via tra ning academies ano

apprenticeship screrneas, and are driving diversity

Telecoms, with one of our cormpanies having
aunched a number of initfatves to recruis wamen

No the seciorn

Home building

QOur home building division utiises a high

roportion of sustairabie trnber frame constructior
methods and installs air soudrce heat pumps in a
croperdes, leading the way in this
heiping reduce carbon emissions.

ol

sector and
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Our strategy in focus

Our businesses

Energy
Trrocugh our energy Sivs:on, the Group owns and
cperates energy s es which supply gas and

etec:mcwty nto the retwork, as well as construcing

renewabie energy sites for future sale Of the 226
energy sites that we own and operate,

.
5]
i~
o
.=
!
<
&)

ra~awah.e energy, contnouting t2 th

[l
i)
«
e}
o
e
w

positon as one of the argest producers of

5
recewable energy from cermmercia. scale solar sites

i the UK Energy sites are iypitaily expecied o

bie prefits for mary jea'
cwning ard cperating these busiresses is
to the Group because of treir potf—'“-tias to deliver

precictanle profis over the leng term.

wabie &
sustaimnanie

ne gy sites generate power from
sources and seli energy proguced eithes
airectly o large ndustnial consumers or b the
network Many of cur renewabie enargy Sites alse
qual‘y for government incernves, wh 2 resaits na

portion of the generated energy benedtirg from
cified penc

a qualifying site 5 operational and accred tation has

rates that are 'locked in' for g spe i stalelc]

s has recuced some of the impact

of tne valatilty 0 ong

beer grantec Th
-ferm energy price forecasis
AL mew 3
h.

Irterast roftne rrarket for sres ke the

s ot in the UK do nat quabify for

=% Teeng rMore

Orc government IMCentves, we are °
<

CNES We oW

v sites s a core part of
up almest 6C% of

Cour Grous has

Did you know?
if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.

Fer returns this year thar expecied
narket conditors bat crucially it has the
potential o provide stable returos over
term, This combinaton & «ey 1o ou” strategy 1o
balance nsk a~d return aorosss e range of

activities 1o generate target returns for stareholoers

"Qur energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

ath energy 3tes we S, wWe

rrEnstres Darks ar compentive rat o enhance

our retaras whicr nens u

S
returrs our sharenolders expact.

Wrile our renewsbie energy business started e i
tre solar energy sector, the Greun has bult
ioges

exverise across ather adjacert tecnnsc

roluding onshorss wing, b omass and lardfiii gag,

supoorted by reserve power Sarts which orovide
Dacku Natonal Grie Trne Groug

o power ¢ ths
“re penedts fromr dve ationt witnin this

v
part o‘ it busin since weaker cond tions for

croductor frorm one techn

EN2rg slogy ofter result
nere The Groug 50

camns 5|gmﬁcaﬂt ser2it from its scale in this

4 \Tmr\Jor CrOOLCION 258w
sector

soread across over 220 sites,

vastly redwwrg he nsk o

Growun oroatac ity f one

rat’'cnal gisraptan.

suffers ar ope
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Our strategy in focus

In addition 10 our UK sites, the
sites o

well These oresent ar atir

Group s deve.oping

VErseas, njunsdictions tnat we understand
rachive Qpporturity as they
Dutld on cur sector expertse in countnes at an
earlier stage of rerewable development Currently
we operale wind farms in Irelanc ana -rance an d
sorar sites in Frarce and Australiz. We have severa
wind sites urder construction in Poland, France

ard Austrabia

During
plants and one energy fror waste sit

tne year we acquired nine reserve power
€. Following
construction, we solg two wind farms in Fnland and
shorty afler the year end we alsc sold Darington
Point, a arge scar e in Auslralia,

Healthcare
Throlugh our healthcare division, tne Group
operates in tne privale redical and retirement vag
sectors. Our retirement ving business, Rangeafo
owns and cparates two retirement villages in
Wiltshire arnd ho

developing thres furine

tr Yorkshire and s currently

r sites for future operations.

Our prvate med-cal busiress, One Healtacare owns
and operates two privaie ~ospitas ir Kent ard
Hertfordshire, providing the very best level ©° care

in modern, wall eguipced hospital facilities.

Sirce returning to normal working patierns we have

seer an increase in the numper of oatients paying
for their own treatment as they face long wa:iting
dsts for NHS treatrrent, Despite the lifting of
restrictions across the UK, Cownd-19
o affec
NHS and incres

irnpace

widesoreas
continues ne acute care sector with a
strezsad sed infection cortrol

measures that reman

Lending

Lending contirues to he a core part of our busness
and nas provided the Group with & profitacle ard
cash generative sector over the past twelve years,
This well-established part of cur Group mamly

consste of proparty lending, which -fowdes
snort-term financ-ng 1o experienced professional
Sroperty rds seeking

oridagirng finance, ard deve.ooment “nancirg,

deveopers, buy-to-let lanclo

which provides short and medium term financing
to companies

A key benefil of the scale of our Groun and of the
siness that we have buii up in this sector i cur

abuty o :mklgat*: risk thraugn haww large

~umber cf short and mediunr term icans spread

across small grojects ta individual borrowers. We
proactively rmanage counternarty risks through

undertaking careful borrower due diigence, faking

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve vears.




Our strategy in focus

ecurity over as
ANG MAINLAIrING COnservar ve Gan-to-vs
Not all ioa

measures heo

perfaormarce issues orn an ndvdua. loa

further mitigates througn the vaiue that

INd vidua!l DOrrowers, relatve to Our ohatl loan Doox,
1

which s corrently soread cn average agrs

i

loans, with an average .naivioua! loan of £2

Fibre division
Our fibre division inciudes five oper:

EPORT

5 weil perform as expecred an

sets Tynicaly o a frst charge basis

9]
=
D
”
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to rmimimese the mrpsct of

AT A

we |

roan es building fore netwerks o the U

are developrment cormpany

Throuch our residental “ilbre bus nesses

bulding rew ptysical fibre newworks for

“ormriarinies in the UK ana so fa

somersel, Dorset, Wilsrwre, Harmpsrire,

Worces
airing o past over CnNe mil-on homes

next three years

Bulld'rg rese or<s Nvoives o

arge netw

lamkua acentres ard telepnone

LK with nomes anag husinessas, effectivery

reclac rg the copoer wres trnaf

Faf of the Z3th century. Jurassic, Swish

Guganet are verucawy ITegiated as they
re

e flhre infrastrucia

¢ have buelt

fhre infrastructure \n underse-vead parts «

tershire ano the Borme Counties,

‘Koand

We are

Qver tne

Srnectrg

excranges In the

and
Dot own

ard alsc nave re end

cuswrer relatonshio as the intemet service

el
)l
jo )
(3

provider or

and wil onooars other (SPs o the

Through Vaorcoss, we are buldng a

recen:ly laurchned a single 10Gko
ket recogn

3
3
Qu

pusinesses

connecivity theyve reliec or o

We have tee” ram

The G’Oup

oita. by 26

TSP Allpoints ownis fore nfrastructure

se. connectyiy to the erd cusiomer.

a network N

Lul"duﬂ

sing trial ampitious
will gquickly reguive more than the LGkp

g growihn our fibre d vison

oowe expect thus divisior o conunueg
a larger part of cur busiress over time

anproxrmately £lon of

U-v o
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[
.
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0
w
—
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|98
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en
LlAlits bulla plans ard reacn

more communites 1 need of uMrafast breacgbanc.

Home building

ervice housebuilder, acaur ng land,
siie, and subsequet

Cur new horme suilding business, Elvia s & ful

o8
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rdividuas buyers T?‘esp 5

mMacket and affordanie hcouses ard srve 1o ceve”

rgh aualty
growing fast wmpro

aspirationa. harmeas The busimess s

jected annual tumover of

1
)

£250m angd L0 nouses ol per year forecastes

withir fre rext 7-3 vears

Alpomis netwaork
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
pusiness activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham

Paui is Chief Executive of Fern and is responsiole for the day-tc-cay running of the
business He 15 alse a manaqing director of Octopus Invesimerts Limiteg (O,
where he has worked since 2005 Ol is a2 key supplier of resource and expert’se
to —er~ Paul's dual ree ensures that this relationship works effectively and in the
pest nterests of Fern's sharehstaers Paul has had varicus cenesl ranagement

and imernal consulting roles scross a number of sectors and o7 ngs waith im

a2 weath of ndustry and business experience.

CL W Heith W%%%y Tt Sy Loonb e
a as

Keith 15 an ciate professor ©F strategy and entreprereursnip st London
RBusiness Screol He also nodds vancus non-exccutiye directorships and acvisory

roles at hign growtn and more mature companes. In h's role as non-executive
chairman
as its governance He brings to the Fern pus ness independent commercial

ke 1s respors ble for the effective aperation of the Board, as well

expenence ganad frorm his ume n academia, private ecuity investmens,
CONsJiing ang varicus hands-on operat:onal reles

Pater Barlow oo s L ey
Petar nas over 20 years' experence in internationa financing of infrasructure and energy.
As a seror execuive for International Power. Peter was responsble for arranging over

Si2br of project and corporate funding, &5 well as oankng relatonsinips and treasury
achvites He nas spent over 20 years working internationally for HSRC, Bank of
America and Nomura, inancirg acguisinons ard greenfed projacts in the erergy
and Infrastructure sectors. His compington of Board-level hnancing and energy
EXpEnence SVAr NUIMerous energy sub-seciors, and his al-round krowledge of
all the sectors in which Fern operates, adds signifcant value to the cperat:on of
the Board as well as 175 strategy fermmation and deployment

Thw Apthue ~oo oo iur Dol

Timos a chartered accountant with more thar 25 years’ internstional experience
a finance director of both public and private companies. Intially he worked

for Price Waterhouse in Birmingham and Chicage More recenty he was Chief

Financial Officer of Ligntiource Renewable Snergy Ltd, a gobal eadar n the

furding, developmert and long-term operation of solar phowovoltalic projects

Tirr brings extensive financial and accountancy knowledge o the Board as
well a5 an urderstanding of dynamic technaiogy businesses gained from nis
execuive positions
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Principal risks and uncertainties

cinal risks

Princ

and rom operationa: Te<s contalr

Systerns and proces
buzress Overall nsic exp
bcin

by sector and geography.

Risk
Market risk:
The energy sector 13 exprriencng
sigrificant tursuterce and there s
a ris< that forecast levels of income
are not achieved due to chances ir
winolesale energy prices, offtake
Coriracis or government subsidies
Cue to ths turnu.ent ervircnment,
t1e potental for Nncreased
niervent.on by the regulator is 250
arise,

Cnarges in Goverrment golicy
may result nreduced rcome
sream™is withir the groun due to
add\?tonct evies.

Operational risk:
“ energy produced may
e ar anticipaied due o
sLb-ontirmal weatmer condit 0ns
cr perforrmance ssues with
equiprrert, whickh may resdit in
signihcant urp.anned downtrre

Financial risk:
Feveraas irom @nerg/
genergtion)
Hram the
from over
expeciad |
fure-ar\ X0

Constructton risk:
Consuzteonof the s

125 ta<es
re COSuUy tnan
artcpates diue 1o resource
ava lapilty orincreased cost of

oNger or § Mo

Ay o

e
ermployad with'n tre

JOSUIE 15 rMana
the Group through the dwversification of 2

o within tne

Tne principal risks that the G

tra lixelnood of the risk
o remained the same
gr_\r{ =

L

o

Mitigations

-

-

wrich ﬁx the incom™e for a
poricr of the erargy gereraed by our ses

Long-term governmen: backed offtzke agreements are

f suen as the Renewable Coiganon Cernfication
"ROC Ferme. ZO% S Our energy reome was
gererated rurn ROC revenue

We engage with the gorenment and e Office ¢ Gas and
clectncity Markets | to cartribiute 1o an ircustry voice
with golizy makers wno set furLre regulatory requirerments

Y S

<

T are ente ﬂj [Ealeel

SFC

i1
Yl

Lrnprea ctatulty of the weather is mitigated throughk

diversificaton of weck relogies and weestionr of sres.

Regular serycing Of asseis 5 ungerta<en o £nsure assets

are kept in good cordiion ard mimimise the risk that
assets are Jnavai.a for a onger pericd

fIce CONracts Wit Contra

-
Sprnate 1o reduce EXpOIAre Yo InCreasing Losts

loz’g witn the mingating
& the potenta, impaci of
e

<. We also mduce our azsessmert of wne
has ircressed, decreased

Croup are exposed o

Cha nge

4

Increased

=
o}
a}
)
o

3

T
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Mitigations
Market risk: +» Management regLlarly reviews the compertive landscape
Fxpected saies from cusicrmers In target budd areas 1o ensure plans ¢o not confl ot wth
are lower than ant.cpated due to other allernatwve network operators
meressed compctiton from otner o Management engages proactively with the Gffice of
provicers. Commiuricarons and tne Governiment to ensure the *‘%
1 t foprmg =g \ i g -
A change in policy oy berefits of zrmaller ooe étors are weil understood anJ 15 Increase
I rnterests are appropnately renresent E’j icue © more
regulators in favour of farger e k N . indusiry Bodi COMPEtions N
We are an active elevan 9 z COMEpEntons .
operators coule Impact our aphty are &n e Ve pant Opar't nre L Industry ? €5 tha market)
. articuiariy those representing alternarive network
1o deliver planned developrnent, pariicuar S€ represeriing alterns Y
oDeratons.

reducing revenues and efficiencies
gained from alarger presence n a
paru ular area,

Constructlon rlsk « The Group ha: cortracties witn g number of dferert
Construction Of tne netwark sappliers to reduce the exposura to any ore mdividusal
takes longer or 15 maore Costly eptity Selecton ,f outsoUrce partners .§ managed Increased (due
Ehaﬂ anticipated due to resource through a deai'ed procurement process weth long term o Ircreasing
availabiily or ncreased cost of wvisibility of werl gllowing partrers 1o plar financial ang ?:;g?irrfyfﬁ:
raw rmateriats. peopie resources acooréingly. the sectar as
« Where supply chamn croblers are exgected for crniucal 8&%??:‘{?
tems our tgams generally have 6 monihs stock of ibre ;Jrc;vi%éﬂ:fgcdte
duct and other matenais on hard, and aovance ordar bunloi
t@fﬂ "at equ: pmeﬂ' \mth lor*g lead tirmes
Operational risk: » Durne: w')r% oI’P buw tina resillient way witn diverse
Metwork service 15 irterrupted or route options should a fadure occur in ore routs m
unrebaole lead.ng to poterual toss Th's, Como%rued w;th an abiity W aentfy and resoive
of custcmers and reputationat connecivity ssues guic<ly, rminimises downtinte cof the NG change
damage. networks.

b2
i

o
E
5

T42 Y,

]
=

3

TRl
et ernt rebe 3
Szl i | i
i an eI c <
S sttt e T
rhin e | SR iR TSR v
i i Sl pbbtetea e REt e i nsw«w»w«muu ¥ AR
e 4 tE o RGeS 3
} PR i i
i 3 it
I#1 : Tht . Rt NG e
: L3 HHS byt

&
55

I 3en

g ety
SECEDEET
LEEIENE

T L L P
sdeld I L




e
e

2 | STRATEGIC REPORT
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Risk Mitigations Change

Market risk: + The tearns pro-activ : Ho9T oM N the
Ircreasng inflation and ineres: rmarketplace and are prepared tO E“‘O’m where needed if
ratec iead 1o @ Market-wide a loam moves inte de’ qt ;
affordab ity Issue, resuitrg n e « Gurloars are made at conservaive loan-to-value {LTV) e
drop in Qf@oefr/ valLies acrocs il ratios with a maxmurm LTV of 70% R

NG change
sectors cf real estate Tris may z

cact cur aminy W recover &
Oarn fub tfarcugn 3 refirance

3

or saie. ;
Counterparty risk: « Loans are :
Loans may be rmace o unsutable such aga

COUNIerpatties imaactng our borrower :
sbility to recover the lcan balarce eNSUrs maxmu s of recovery sFoula ent : ,@% .

i full

act on be nesder).
« Thorouah dua ditigence s parfonrmed onor 1w ing
L‘ar” ncluding property or tand vaiualions ard cregnr aconom
s rone on borrow@!s chme
e 0ars arg written for asse
ONES aNG Covenants are
stages are complete prior (G re

rconstru k,T\C‘ﬂ,
GG ensun

lrt?‘:er drawccwn; :

Héalmcarell-lcmeauiidmgnimsion:s B R R T A |

Risk M|t|gat|ons Change

Market risk (Healthcare and » Flanring corsents or undeveloned and are ooumisec 0 ‘

Home Building): maxirmise revenues ana reduce the risk of 033 onsae .& ‘

Afal m house prices cou Ld . '
increazed (dus

mpact cu” asitity 1o genera to unistable

expected revenie from e sae BCONOMC

of apartments In cur retirerment climate)

vidages erd houses buelt by Elvia !

Construction risk (Healthcare « The Grouan enters fixed oric

and Home Building): tD redice excosure 1G Increas:ng m —

Construct on takes ionger o « Trie Group om’-/ WorHs wills reputanle 2rd carnes witn 3 P

g rmore costly than anticpa ed strong track recr of deliverng s ar orojects. No charge

due o rescurce avalabiity or
¢

moreasel Cost O favw ratenals

Healih and Safety risk .
(Healthcare):

Hiepisnan GIrSrooust O

ng o tre provision of med

Tre crevert:on cf Injury o7 mrougﬂ conducing regiuiar s
avoidatie loss of Ufa of our SISO SUDeCT W axtermnal nspes
cat erts s ot utmaost imeooriance s The SImsurance so'\c SERe: o
a b due to recical ma.pracLce Clarrs o cnetge

grd s cntical io mantanTg a fin
goceo recutation. Lugaton a
a resuliof men cal mapraciTe
cousld result ndamage to
5

puta,mf 2nd Imcreased Cosle,




Mitigations

[PLTTPRRReTERTS ALY LR E AR BB

+ Where floating rate debt 15 in place whers interest varies

Anincrease in base rates may indine witn ar underlying nenchmark rate), the Group

ncresse costs on debt facil ties, erters nto hiedgimg arrangements to fix g poruon of these Acressed

Irpact~g the Group's abiaty to payraens throughout the term of the facity Hedgng [due to rse in

service debt as it falls due arrangemaeants are outlined in Mote 21 of the financial interest rates)
staterents,

Liquidity risk: « Adetsiled cash flow forecast < prepared anc reviewed

Poor managerment of casn wethin by maragemernt on a moninly bas s, ncorparating cash

the Group could impact the availabiliy and cast rogquirements across the Group. On at

Group's ability 1o rreet oklgatians ieast a fquartarly basis this is shared with the Board

as they “all cue. » The Groug mcnitors bark covenants ©1 an ongoing basis s

. \ o]
0 eNnsuUre Cconunued agdnererce 1o covenants. Wreare

covenants can't be met, forecasts are updated for the
lower cask ava labie as 4 rezull of the restnction.

= The Group hias a flexille finance facuity which can be
drawn orn at short notice 1o meet immeadiate bugimess

Mo change

neads.
Health and Safety risk: « We have deve.oned ropust health and safety poiices in
The safety of our employees compliznce with *5045C01 scross the Groun 1o ersure
ang those employed trcugh the wei-beng of our sta .
contracts are of caramoun: « Healtn anc sa'ely raming 15 providec to our 513 and
impcrtance. Trere is a nisx that centractors on aregular bas s, Increaced

acc dents in the workpiace could
result ri senous rjury or deatn

ploy a Chief Inforrmaton Security Ocer ['CISO)

Cyber Security risk: « Wee

An attack on our 1T systerms ana whais respons ble for data security across the Group and

data could lead to disruptior reporis guarterly tc the Board. —

of our cperat’ons and loss of ¢« The CISO works closely wth our businesses tc ensure e
cJustomer data. Loss or m suse sdequate standards of security ang infermation Nc change
of data may result in reputatonal mariagement are mat

camage, regulaiory acton under « Each of cur businesses that hold custormer data has ther
GDPR ard potental fines. own ded.catec resource for T and security

The strateqic report was approved by the Board of Directors on 16 December 2022 and signed or its benaif by,

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022

L
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Corporate governance

Section 172 {1) statement

The Beard consider that they have adnersd o the
requireTents of sechion 172 of the Comparies Ac:
20006 (the "Act’), and have, 1Ir gcod faith, arcied m a
way that would be most Lkely
success o the G

© prarmoe the

aroup for the ber

as a whole raving regard to all 3
211a-f) of tre Act)
in e deasions taken during the year endeg

A
20 Jure 2022,

matters et out in section |

Iri the performance of s duty to o
of the Groun, the Board h
nunber of matters, ing

SUCCE

conseguance of any dedt
listens (o ne views of the
obuld rust and e
r:"rpmtw{
Eoarg “ulfits tiese duties partly by delegation to

Group's k
nsure it fudy understands the
TIpacts r the decisions it make: The
comritizes snd the Coards of subsidiary

undertak
COVEMAnTe framewnrk ac-

~gs, who operate within a corporate

the Group

fhesglth and
ancial and operatiora.

At every Board meeting a review <

safety across ine group. fin

b

anc
compuance, I1s underake. Tf*e Board aiso review
raregs over the course of the fnancial yes

including the Groug's busness sirategy, m/rck,

stakenolder related mratters, diversty and includ vity,
roatters, corsorate responsibuty, and

covernance, corrpliance and egs! matters.

Principal decisions

(=)

We defne princ pa. dec y tre Boara a2
g'< nature and

HSIONS taker
of a strate
antte ary of our ke
the

thase decisicns that are tral
that are sigri Y staxe”c!der

[l
groups. The Beo:

;11
bR
0
O
i
bl

ollcwing are

examipies of sr;-ﬂ.c'” 2. Zecis ong T mace i” the year

Group acguired a large scale, ready Lo construct
wind site iy Austrats his deploymert augns

with the Crolp's strategy to continue o

develop renevanle ¢ -5 wihneh orovide

predictabie, lon r reverue streams The

Board cornsi dtre opnoriu ara how it

aligried with our ’Jme {ves 1o make a pesitve
conwbuion o he Commurity and environmeant,

Trie Group decded o expand mto our ewest

division, house Guildirg In May 2022 e Greup

acaouired Zhvia homres, a ful-sery

propearty

eveloper, provicing sevices frorn th

o the engiresirg and shan final construcnon
o ensure the delivery of guality wokrarship
Dwersifyirg the Group's asse! sase ard enterng
Irto th s new sector has beer we | though:

Sut witr iorg term growt i mind  Tne Board

es withir the

cecior pefare deciding e move shead with s
ACTUISTION, Corsaerirg how this woua Imoact

exshing buanesses within the dv sion and how

SiC obizctives o

it aignec witn tne Group's strate

delver long-rerm value and predictanle grawtn

for our shareho'ge s

FReviewing ana deciaing to move anead with
increasing bomass operators which s part o
our renewsables divsior T Qctober 2020 the
Group acgured a srge scele, waste-to-energy
construcnion ste | ‘S tznd. This e:loymen:
aligns with the Group's strategy to corinue o
diversity the Grouo, develop rﬂnewaut energy
s tes which orovice pred.ciab e, long-fermr
reveride srrfafn”, and proyde resilience agairst
rearear The Ecar'j corsidered tne apoortun oy
SNC now T ai\gred with QuUr Sojective: (o

orrouion 1o the commun-ty
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Corporate governance

+ Tre board decided to change audit firms via a
tender process for the year ended 30 June 2022
Tre Group had charged significantly since the
previcus auditors were appoinied ard therefore
we were unab.e o reliably assess the value for

roney we received, Three firms underwen:

the wncer process and Errst & Young LLP were

%]

elecied because of thar strong commercial
derstanding of cur business, efficient audit

methodalogy and vaiue for monaoy.

Business strategy

Cur busimess strateqgy 13 set out on pages 11 to 14 of
the Stralegic Report Maragement prepares a
detalea Group budget whichiis approved by the
Board on an arnual nasis and forms the basis for

the Groun's resource planning and deployme
decisions. In rnaking decisions concermning tne
business plan, tme Board nas regard frst and
foremost Lo IS strategic focus, but alss to cther

ch as trie nteresty of its var ous
rs and the lon

matters su

staxeholde g-term mpact of s

actions on the Grouc's future ano reputation.
Sharehoiders
Shareholder relaticns arnd generating shareholder

value is a key consigeration when the Board g
making strategic decsions The prime medium by
wnich the Group communicates with sharehoiders
15 through the annual repert snd financial
staterments, which aim to provide sharetoiders witk
a full understanding of the Groug's activites and its
results. This information is published on oJr website

at www.ferntrading.com.

Employees

The Grouo's er‘noloyees are fundamenal to the
overall success of the business Tne Directors fLlfil
their duty to ermrployees by entrusting oversight (o
subsidiary Boards which the Chief Executive of the
Group aiso sits on.

The directers of the subsidary undertakngs
manage the day to day decision making,

engagement and communications with employees

and ensare that peogle are treated fairly and are
valued with respect to nay. beneht and conditions,
t o wISh to be

s affecting the'r

work and 1o b{: rvoived N prokle rr-fsolvmg

We suuly realise tha

afecting ther own areas of inferest ard
responsibiity The Group ‘1rmly committed i
at all ievels and we

policy of good commuricat or:

aim to establish a cumate which consarty

encourages the cpen flow of informatiaon and

deas Preserr_ly tnis incltudes mont hy team briefings
at 2 local level and the puul tior of morithly key
periormance indicators coverirg o mput cperating

costs, and healtn and zaf et)/

The nealth and safety of cur employees in the

workplace s a continual ‘ecus for the Groug, given
s broad operauonal pusiness, The Directors review
Hezlth & Safety Reportng ar each board meeting to
ensJre approprate policies anc orocedures are ir

place w© protect tre health ard safety of cur
Y and coentractors Where there are

aQ

mD‘.deeS
or1ssues, these are followed
ety has s, with the Board

Ldefciencies o
up and resclved on &
having overs gkt of the actions taken

potenta

The Group cutsources activiies and managemernit
of certan operatiorzl acivities to external supphers
Where actiities are cutzources the Board enzures
that triey are managed by reputadle suppliers whio
meet all the rewevant industry ard requlatery
commitments as well as readirg emrployees fairly.
Expected standards are documented in alt
contracrs and acherence to these are continually
moritored by Board through ther service
agrezmeant with Octopus Investmerts Lmited.

service

Suppliers and customers

The Croup acts in a fair manner witk all suppliers

and custcmers and seexs to mainam strong

busines: relat.onships with therr. This is acmieved

by all contracts beng negotiated through a fair and
ansparent lender process which includes

assessing the impact on the long-term objectives of

oA

e
]
A

ST
fadat thiaeheeel ntfé"‘ phsadpte o
n L A
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the Group We review OLr DayImen: orod

timea agamst CuNtracls every six montins

5 are pawd promptly and this nformaton for
the ccmioany 1s avalabie an the www.gov.uk

Tre Group ensures tacs farly and i g ransparenrt

rmanner o al customers acress: alt divisions ara

sarvices. and actively engay
or defaults, The B

arct Closely moniers custarmer
ges wit™ the management team w0

metrcs ard en

siecif pcusiness parfermance doeas
N meet Customers expectaions.

cotoput investrrers Lmited

rd suoplier with
erat:ona.
4 Comoany

o Of 5

Community and environment
Thie provision and cperaticn of susfamnabie

irfrastruciure 1s at the cenire of the Grouo’s
strategic goals Trrough (< busness activities the
2

Groug seeks w rrake a pos:ove corinbenon o the
&n

Corrrunity, env ronment ard econory (Our

rerewzble energy business is Relowrg the U4 meat

Ite renewabie energy Ergets

have supported the NHS

cur private nosprals
througnodt the Covid-19
pandemic by providing reament for ron-Covig-19
NHS patients thar otherw se could noet have been
carned cut, and our fitre nelwsrk will Give ceople
in rural cormrmumbies aecess to Mge- S'Jr:ed

croadband

Business conduct
As Directors our nter

O berave responsitly,
sersle ‘he business with

ErSUNng

rregaty and o g 2wt e migh slaraands

'y resalve any disputes

of conduct and goverrance expecied of a busin

m
l

[intErtor through our business
1 strategy (outined on pages 11 to 14) 15 1 operate in

S8CIOrs and work with other bus.nesses that share

Dur values

Business ethics and governance
The Zoard 12 resgonsicle for ensunng that the
ne Groud and its vanous businesses are

orducted N complisnce with e isw and
app.icable governance and regulawory regirmes, ard
iri adnerence with preva:lrg cest pracice for the

re.evant industry Thicincludes review.ng internal
contrgls, ensurng th

baignce of skelis and excenerce rep

Roard, anu ens.nng that tre financial s

give a true and ‘ar v ew of the state of aTairs of the

e found nthe staemnent
cnpage J2 Inthe year

f corcern have heen

Group Furtner detail can

fdirectors resporsibiliie

flagged N this regare

Employee, human rights, sacial and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
: and bribery matters

Tne Board's COICY ON empioyees, urean «gnts,

P osocalacd comrmunt v issues, envrorment pcl\cy
ard anu-corrusion and oribery matters i discussed
In the Drrectors Report or page 29 The Boarg
actvely prmr‘olfs a corperate culture that s based
Poon ettical values 2aa behaviours
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Beview of Hnancial statements

The purpose of this recort iz @0 provide additiona, : the share price and may not reflect changes . the
explanatory informaton on the financial statements. | full mar<et value of assets or businasses cwned by :
: !
N measLnng our oerformance tne Ainancat I othe Group ;

measures that we us lLde those that have beary § . ‘
i ‘ 1 Arnumrber of acquiziiions were made durng ine

derved from our reparted results in order to : . ) -
) Loyear inciuding nine operational reserve power sites, :
eliminate factors thal aistort year-cr-year : ]
. ;o awaste em:fgj site under constructon, a H
comparisonrs Tnese are consigared non- GAAP : i
toconstruction resdy wind farrm in Austrana ano :
financia. rmeasures : ;
I severteen sclar rooftes sites under construction ;
: i
A reconcihation of these to the firarcial results Can o Shortly after the year end, in July 2022, we sold |
te found in note 28 of the notes to the Fnancial I Dariington Port, a large souar site in Australia :
statements. - . :
P To supoert contnued expansion. we nad oult up |
The financial staterrents snow assets at ¢ost as such ¢ cash reserves at year end of £250rm whicr neiuded i
tney do not reflect the future value mat we expect to 1 a large casn infiow of £97m from placing external i
derive from these busingsses To that extent i refinancing i Darlington Point ornor o sale :
eccolnting performance may differ materiaily from : |
i

(restated) Movement

2022 2021

£'000 £000 £'000 %
HZerlLe‘w T & ! 711, 830 . 42"5 302 - ?86 528 ‘ 67%
Prr‘ﬁt Ilo ’vfort t7 y‘ . - 47604 - (22 663) - 31““
Iﬂrumg hoo If .'wt @f pfou)rw - “360 901 S 385,512 - \24641; . (6/", .
k,’a;ﬁiﬁﬁ - 256,415 o 172,478 832937 4;37: .
Metdet 79316 699440 9s2m IS
NCTHSSFIB o . 2 2.;19448 N 1 887 842 )31 607_ ‘18%

Financial performance f£425m;) which was predeminantly driven by a 84%
Owerall, the Group has reporied a profit before tax of
E47 6m for the vear ended 30 June 2022, whicn is a

£70 3m improverrant on the orior year (2021:

ncrease in revenue withir cur energy division. This
growtn ¢ two io.d, increasec energy genaraion
fror1 havng owned/operatec one of our bicmass
plants for the full year anc a large solar plant in
Ausiralia reaching commissioning, and a ssgrifhcant
IFcrease In average energy grices over the year due
0 the misrnatch between suoply and demand,
exacerbated oy the ongoing conflict in Ukraine.

£22 7 oss restated] Overall sBITDA ircreased Dy
§7% 1o £195m (2021, £104m restated;, wnich is
primanly due to mcreased energy cereraion as weil
as ircreased energy Drices,

Revenue increased by £287rm to £712m (2021

‘Earnirgs before inferest, tax, aeprecaton ard amaortsation
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REvernae growih was strongest in our energy
divis'on but we alsc saw a rmarkes improverrent in
revenue o our reurement villages. This pars of
orm the

our business has resounded well fre

lockdowns requires by the Covia-15 pandemi c
response. selling 41 units in the year {an increase of
52%) ard an ncreasicg ‘'n revenue of £7.5m to

E204m (2021 £12.7m).

i from our ending dyvision saw a drop of
n {2021 £57m) due o 3 smaler average
loar pook over the year as cash was made availacie

to grow other parts of the business

Gperaung expenses for the year were 'n Lne with

our expesialons, wilth the ncrease prirmarty driven
Dy InCreased op sts e our Gore dvsor as

it has expanced. Refiranang external dett to

(%]
T
)
C
m
3
el
o

ved terms over Whe past two years haz

contributed o a decrease im interez costs of 22 5

r the resuits this year is 2 profit of £28m
recogrised on e sae of w0 vard farms n Fincand
1 of deferred concideratior

2VIOUS Yed s,

Financial position
snareholaer int

[l
e
D
(4]
il

ortnue
seen ot assets grow ta B2, 219

astated). I the year ended 30 June 2022, we

(

ssued 120m shares (2021 15C0m; for a total
2021 £2.327m). Tne
£29923m of

ructun.ng

cnsiderauon of £204m
comparalve year numeers irclude

consideration retan Nng o aroLs res

FERDEM 2021 £662m restated)
have =r:creased by El o, ceflecting the reducicn in
externa Tnarcing ard an increase Ir wWork N progress
Curloan

bocok N prope—rty ‘ending ~as gecreasec by 5% to

£301m 2021 E£386m; ana at 30 June 2022
reoresenzed 16% of net asseis 2021 21%)

oparating activites decreased to £42m (2021
2242m) which has seen ut lied alongside external
ong-term financing and cantal raised by new share
1Lsues ko grow the busimess. We have invested
sunstantially Into the fibre oroadband sector over
ner capwtai
next 3-5 years, increasng ou

tme past four years which will requ\re fLr
exgenditire over the

ﬁ

diversification across secters

Sf the cash held at year end, £2111 was held in
sur energy, home puilding and fore subsidiaries,

whers there are 3 number of corsirLct on ang

inffrastructure projects under way, reguiring cash

be readity avaiabne for st

2 payrmients gug in the
rnonths after year end.

cort nuas e be a sigancant numoer on tre
Jrees on the gegusition of some
busmesses, for exampe

as
ften Mave a market value

ompany’

3 ret asses, ’efa*&i(‘jt\r“g

trair retabe f_nt_:re IMCCIMe Lireams ACcountrg
converticn reauires that only 1dert mdc assets are

sheet so me accournits
oitn

ramed on the balance

canno: record the balane gdditiona. market

o
T
o]
(D

value which comprises the future protis tnat sites

are expeacted 1o deiver. Tre additional vaue in
excess of e value of fixed asses themselves (suoh

s colar panels) s recognised as gooowil.

aiLe of the ereragy

nesses {or Ingsed any oreranoral
vawie of future expeciec
SIMply buying tangitie assets

ket value for 'ke sites we acaure, which may
exceed the vaue of icentifat.e gssets such as ne
Iols
Y

gradually be wrden off, yp caHy over the e of the

site, as expectes eturrs a
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Sector performancs
Energy :
As econcmic activity and global demand ircreased
so toc did wholesale

througnout the year, 2rergy

Drces, arven by movements In commadily ornees,
woich restlted in the overall ircrease in revenue
earned atress our ensrgy sites. These marke:
factors have resulted in ar: increase in revenue of
84% to £553m (2021 £329m) :

&

Cor’espomc‘mgiy, B TDA alsc roreased by 1127t
E266m (2021 £
igriificant increase 1N energy revenue, Overal total
operalrg costs increazed by £130m to £327m

26 restated) reflecting the :

Wl

FY2022

Production
(MWh)

Biomass 1,050,038
Canafll Gas 240,226
Reserve Powo! 403,355
Solar 554,858
Filale! 851,214

Total 3,099,690

(2021, £1%4m restared),

e E1Z20m was

partialy driver by increased
site costs wher incurred at our

serve power s

I

biomass stes and £93m at cur re

eEp for raw rmaienals have increased, on
average, t:y 69% cue to an increase in the supply
costs The combined cost of sales for the ressrve
power and biomass sites ncreased by £110m (¢

{ “07mj It shouls be noted that the

amed by the iomass
power sites increazed by £192m duning the year to

£353m (2021 £161m).

revenus gener s and reserve

Fyzozli Frzozz2 FY2021
Production External External
(MWh) Availability Availability

886 553 84.6% 22 2%
250,026 97.9% 97 &%
142,086 94.2% 92 0%
517112 97.7% 96 0%
90.5% 93 1%

2, 682 019
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Healthcare

Healincare cperations contnibuted £46r
(2021 ££42mi o
reflecting the impact of increased revenue
Rangeford. Sales of apartrents at the refirement
s have repounded well from the loc<downs

Croup revenues for the year

i

village
squirec by tre Covid-19 o

ﬁ

anderm:c response,
seling 41 units in tre year (an ncrease of 52% from
321} and increa

21 £12.7m)

oo

NG revenue by £7.6m to £20 2m

Lending
Revenue from lerding decreased by 214 10 £42m

(2021 £57m) prirnanly due ta a smaller average

witich resalted Ina

decreased

sh e for ocportunities across other
sectors within the Group imcauding acguisiions and
construction The make-uo of tre lean book
shified sligrily whnere we have 1ssued a nigher
number of smaler loans within the residenial
sector, as well as more larges loans i the

develogrment zector and the commierc al secior

EB. TDA for the .ending divisicon decreased to 2 '0ss
of EE/mfremoa
year Tris movernrent reflocts a provison of £25mn

oroft of neary £E1m . the pror

tne lcan bock against loans to reserve power sies

and s provision against a realthcare loan of £147
I~ the year to Jure 2022, 239m was prov dea
against oars verzus E21rmr the pr.er year

Ac g relatvely new civisicr. all

are mtrne bod

anucisate e b
3-5 years as we expsnd the fbre networks
Athougr oulcing 2 fb e networt

k
and leaas 1o a physcal asset on calance sheet the

SN alzo mcors large operating €
busimeszes scale theair operatons an :
et presence. Overall t~e d vision reperted an
EBTOA Ioss of £55 £m (2021 £23 5 loss), which

i in line with exgeciatiors and ref.ects the

[au)

developmenta: stage of the di

o

As we bulg thase netwaorss out, the assets will be
recognisec o the bafance sheet at cost which

cannot ncude ‘uture value which s exgected o he

generated as the as rave seen internally
generated This s differentto tne share price w f‘ﬂ’e
tre futlre valie expeced 1o oce gener

assets is included

Home building

Elivia =omes was acq.ied i
trerefore had tmited impact o0
performance during the year The busingss is
forecast to detiver E78m reverue and £6 5mi
E8 TOA for the year ended 30 June 2023 R

the Arst quarter of 2023 indicate the o

S broadly performing in wne w o e(pec'gtlcns

Funding and liquidity
Ciur strategy £ 1o seclre long term ©
rearr hanks 1o

mancing at

corsarvative levals frorm mar

ENNANCE reiarms rGmM Our rénewasie energy
had £1.044m of

bLeress

At year anc we

(1

external project inancng with £441m of
headreo vat ]
s enaples us to aoguite busiiesses at the

miar<et considers i have stat.e charactenstcs such

as predictable cost base, revanius sreams,
QOVErIME™T NZentvat Or proven echne'ogy and a

sLch have lower returns that witnout laverage wouia

fcent for Tur sharerolders 11320 alows us

3y
rerurn ard sk

AODIoAT R
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the current interest rate volatitity. We continuaily
review financinNg arrangemenis to ensure that they

are competiive and aptimiced for the reeds of the
business To ersure casn s managed -n an agile

ronanran we rmalntan a fexible firance facility
which can be drawn down Or repaid to mees

mmediate business needs

Looking ahead

The Croue has rebounceg well from the effects of
the Covid-i9 panderric and h
exgectatons, Whilst the
s one of cha lenge ard uncertanty, we articipate

as outperformed
cdrrent economic cuticok

resuiis due lo e
and cost base, and
. Coupled with the

minima. mpact on our
gredictatie reverye streams
e3sant al nature of cur acuvities
diversitcation we have bulil up across the busmess,
we are posioned stroncly for these twrbulent

trmes ariead

We

challer ges of nairg interest rates and surging
inflat.on - botn in terms of lendirg and portfouo
managemert Tnese trerds rrpact all areas of tre
Group's business and are likely 1o remain for the
foresze i disciplined in our
rvestraent approach, continuing o moritor the
and taking a prudert approach to
Nt and emerging risks

cortinug Lo pay part cular attentban to the twn

eabe future, s owe rermamn

cituaticon carefuily
ary currer

We are positive about the continuad opgortunity
for growth and cornuriue at the
business is positoned well o take advantage of
futare growth opporiurities across its core business
arzas Energy, lendng and house building
operatons are well established in the rmarket anc
conitnue to make exceldent progress with robust

es ir the new financial year. In line with

o believe t

performanc

our planned ctrategy, since the year end we soild a
solar farm in Auctralia for 3 small prefif, with

proceeds being redeployved irto new opporiunities,

Ceployment into fibre condinees 1o roll out in line
with expeciations and the Group Fas now passed
r 150,000 homes by our fibre networks
aclivity in our healtrcare civision rermams
sles budget

stready competed or reserved across ail sites as &

rmrore tha
Sales

strong, with nearly 40% of annual s

=g

the end of Septernber

Arinounced withn tm& autLmn statermenrt as part of
the 2022 Finance B, the oK Goverrment will
enact a 457 winafal! | {("Eleciricity Generator
Levy "EGLY on whol ale energy market

verues In excess of E75/MWn This s expected 10
appy o the Group frorm 1 sanuary 2023 to 3%
Marcn 2078 The exact legislanon wil pe publshes
n mid-Gecember 2022, on the nitiat
=rformed

out nased

Deen pe

U]

reiease a1 impact analysic 13
as at 30 Septemoer 20z2 We estimate the impact
to be a drog in valuation of approx
contriputed 1o a

U’) H

\matel\/ £45rn
for the sites affecied, which
2.0p decresse in the share price to 177

2022,

Decerrber

We expect to generate strong operating returns
frorm our established divisions for the corming years,
N additicn o the anticipared outflows for our
constructicn ohase assets. 7 he healthcare and

ons are well into their buld phase in tine

sng-term strategy and we anticipate

fiore divisio
Arin our
strong returns over the rest five o seven years

upon reatunity

PS Latham
Cirector
16 Secemper 2022




Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022,

For a surmmary of the Group's r

™
el (Il

Group firance rey ew ¢ page ¢

Thea directors have not recom
a divicend (2021 EMI

-

The airectors of the Company who were 17

during the y=ar arnc up to tre date of sigring the

fnancial staterrenrts were.
B5 Latharm

I Wiiey

=G Barlow

T Arthur aepoicted 1 Juy 2022)

Refer to rote 22 in the Noes o the finarca

statements

Refer to the Strategic Report or page 8
Refer to t-e Strategic Regort on page 12
Jefer to tne secior 172 statemrert oo cage

ended payment

o'fice

—-r.

The Groug's objectves and gol< 22 on Granca. rns<

management incuding Informaton on the

axposure of the Group © cred trisks. L guicity rig<s
snd market rizks zre sat out in note 21 to the
nanciai staterrerts The Group's pring pal rizks are

et oLl In e strategic report or page 16

i

1oy secnen 424 (1L of tne Companies

e direciors have electeg o disc ose
gt ke in the directeors’ renort
0% f&crtedaﬂe 7 of the’ Laro\ rd Megium-sized

Tne Board recognises that a corporate culiure
tased or sound ethical vaiues ang benaviowrs 1s ar
assel, The Group endeavours o cordact ils
busimess with rtegrity, ' an ehical professiona.

&N responsibie mancer, reating our empayes

~d pariners with courtesy

Apchcanons for employment oy disanled persons
are gwen fulh and farr cons deraticr “or 3l
vacancies. hav rg regard to tneir particuar zpt iudes

2
8]
0
M
"
0
5
(9N
m
)
3
o]

ard atilihes Sroui

4

4
while nthe Groun’s emp.oymert, every efor i

rrade i retain N IN 8L LGy MENT, gINg

sllerratnve raming 85 recestarn
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N L T [ SN

We fully realise that aur ermployees wsn 10 be

Nformred ang consuted on matters afecting ther
wiork and to be lnvo ved in problem-solving affecting

their own areas of interest and resparsibility

The Group is fdrmiy commitied to a policy of gooa

commiunicaton at all leveis and we aim to establsh
a clirate which constantly encourages the open
flow Of INformanon ang aees. Fresently this
ncludes montrly iearn Lrefings at a ocal leve. and
the sublication of merthly key performance
ncicators covenng cutoul, operating cosis and

heaith and safety

The Grouo has ir place an agreement witn Octogus
Irvesiments Limted to provide services 10 the
Croup covering operational cversight,
administration, company secretarial ant cormoany

accouning

formal envirernmental, social
and corporaie governance ('ESGT polcy on

30 September 2020 Tne Group recogrises the

“he Board acoptes a

need to cond uctits Dusiness, In a manner that 13

responsible to the environment, whearever poscible

As a low energy user, the Company has clecteg not
to disclose cata onits energy and caron usage.
Fern Trading Limited is the only Camparny in the
Group that meets the report'na criterg and
therefare no Information is proviced for the Group

as & whole

The
ntroduced robust procedures te ensure full
O ard to ensure

Grous's has an Anti-Bribery Poticy whuch
compliance with the Bribery Act 201
that the highest stancards of professionat ethicat
conduct are rmaintained.

In accordance with the recommrendatons of “he UK
Corporae Covernance Coge, the 3oard nas
corsigered the arrargerents n place (o encourage
staff of the Group or manager of thie Group to raise
concerrs, in confdence, witnin telr crganisaticn
abcut possibe mprogretes m maiters o inanci
reporting or other matters. [t s satisfied that ade
arrangements are in place to allow an ndepen de'w:t
nvestigation, and folow-or aciion wrere necessary,

to take place within the organisation,

We are comm.tied o acting cthicaly and with
ntegrity .n al gt and
relationships ard woimolementing and enfercing

L OUT DusImess coal
effective systems and cortrols ¢ ensure modern

slavery is not taking place arywnere ir our own
Cusiness or inany of our supply chains, consistient
with our cbagatons under the Modern Slavery Act
2015, We expect the same high stancarcs from all
of our contractars, suppiiers and ot-er bLamess
partrers. As part oF our contracting orocesses, we
expect our suppliers to comply with the Modern

Slavery Act 2015

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Annua. Reoort and tne Anancial statements in

accorgance with applicable law and reguiat on,

Company law reguires the directors [ prepare
financial staterrents for each financiat year Under
nat law the d
Compaf‘y firancial statements \n accordance with
nited Kingdom Generally Accepted Azcounting
Pract%ce {United Kingdom Accouring Standards,
compris.ng FRS 102 "The Financ ai Reporting

rrectors nave prepared tne Group anc

Standard applicakle in the UK and Repupiic of

reland” and apiphicable law). Under company taw
ne directors must Not approve the financal

staternents unless they are satisfied that thay give a
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= ana far view of the state of affars of the Groun ¢ 0 wmrse ] oo 0 e |

Company and of the profit or loss of the Grougs

and

P As permitied by the Articias of Asscciaton, the

and Comgpany i at periot preparing the : N
ana Lompany for that period In oreparing the i directors have the teriedt of an indermnity which is
rnancial statements, the cirectors ara recuired to : . . : i

clat sta > G are reat © D2 aualifying trrg-party incer nity provision as

= select suitanle accounting poloes and then app.y todefined by section 234 of the Companias Act 2006,

i The indemnity was i force througnout the last
P ofnancia vear and Is carrently in force

:onthe case of each direcior in office althe date the

T Directors’ Report1s approver
L L L Do 50 faras ihe drector s aware, INere 5 ro relevan?
« make lucgements and accourting actrmaes that f |

aud.t informaucr of whch tne Group and
are reasonable ard prudent; and

I - P R e AL =y~
Comipany's aud.ors are unaware, ard

« prepare the fina-cal stalemenc on the gong
-7 v they have taker g the sieps thist they oughs

concern basis urle Srapproorate to :

- —~ : tO have taker a5 & Cretior 1M order 1o make
presume tnat tne Grouo and Cor gany wik : ) )
OIS 1N B AEsS i thernselves awere of any relevant aud™
P = (¥ AN I Ll Bt} -

: nfermation ana to establisn that the Group and

528

Tre directors are 850 reso

s}
tre assets of the Group and Comosny

and rence . . o

i This confirmator is gwver and s—oula

sent H o .
DN accordance witn the provisic
¢ the Comparnies Act 2006

ing adequate 1 . . I

) ) oornst & Young LLE having bess gonomrmen n 2022,
accountng records tmat are suffic’ent 1o show and 1 )

PoPave ndicated e rwil ngness (I oe reappormed

t t
exolain the Groug anc Cormpany's ransact ons and
e

dsclose with reasonaltle accuracy at any e re

apoontrmert m accordarce wtn sechion 485 of the

fna~ciat posingen of the Group ana Company and

‘ o Comparies Act 2005
enable them o ensure naf the fnancial statements P

- g2oard of

@l

The Directors recort was agoroved by tn
. -

Directors on 16 December 2022 ara s'gned on as

Beaf fry.

: PS Latham
P Tirecior

16 Secernper 2022

(ORI S

ible for safeguasding 1 Comipany's auziors a7e aware ¢ tnat informat on.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinlon

We have audited the financ al staterrents of Ferrn
Tradirg Limited ('the Farert Company’) and (s
sJbsidianes tre 'Group’! for the year endea 30
Jurie 2022 whuch

Caormgorehensive Incomre, tne

comprise the Groug Staternent of
Group and Parent
Compary Balance Sneet, the Group Staterrent of
Casn Hows, the Group and Paren S
Changes 10 Equity and the related noves 1o 2°
nciuding &
golicies Thne hnancial report ng framework that has
heen aoclied 11 ther preparation 1s applicable law
ards
Francial Reportirg

3
I

tatermenrt O
s}

surnmary oF significant accounting

and Un wed Kingdom Accounting Stan
including FRS 102 "The |

Standard anpiicabte in the UK and Republic ©

fre.and” {United Kingdor Cenerally Accepted
Accountirg Practice)
I our oprien, the inanc at statements:

GTOUD‘S and of the
0 cune 2022 ard

= gve a true and fair view o the
Parent Company's affairs as at 3
of th

e Group's profit for the year then ended,

« nave peen properly prepared in accordanrce with
Urited Kingdom Gererally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

e nave been orepared In accordance with the
requirements of the Compan:es Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducteg our audit in accordance wath
Inzernationat Standards on Audit ng UK] {5As (LK)
w. Our responaibilities urder thoze
h r descrbed in the Auditor's

ne akdit of the financial

of our recort We are

and aoplicabie la
stardards are fur
responsibiites fo
statements section ¢
Cﬁpe%eﬁr of the Group In accordance with the

nica requwrprrvﬂmts that are reievant o our audit of
thie Ain aterments in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical “tamdard. and we have fulfilled our
cther ethicai responsioilit e in accordance with
these requirements

anciat 3

We believe that the auon evidence we have
obrained is suficient and appropriaie 1o provide a
for our

Das.s opirion.

Lonclusions relating Lo going congarn

In auditirg the Fnanoal statermeants, we have
conciuded trat the directors use of the go'ng
corn bass of accoun the preparation of

con g oin

tre Francial statements 15 aporoprate.

r the work we nave performed, we have
Je”tfﬂd any materal uncertainte
hat, individua

the Grou

s relating to
events or congitions ly or collectvely,
rd Parent
Cvmua”y: acilty to continue as a gomg concerns

for a penad of twelve months from when the

may cast signifcant doust on

financial statements are autnornsed for 1ssLe

Ciur responsibilities and the responsibilities of

the directors with respect to going concern
are describeg in the relevart sectic

repor. alt future events or

ns of ©
However, Decadse not a

conditions car be grecictec, this statemert 1s not a
quarantee as to the Grodp's asilty to continue as &
goirg cencerm.

Gher information

The otner informat:cn comprises the informaton
ort, other tran the
financiat statements and our auditor's regort
thereon, The directars are respansiale for the other

‘ncluded in the anuai rec

infarmation contained witnin the annusl report

Cur opinion an the firancial statements does not
cver the other informat.on and, except 1o the
extent otherwise exglicitly stated in this report, we
oo not express any ‘orm of assurance corclusion

thierecn.

Cur responsibility is (o read the other information
and, in doing sc, consider whether the oiher
nformation s materally inconsistent with the

financial staterrents or our knowledge obtaned in
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

e course of the audit or ctherwse acpears (o be
materally reisstated. [f we ident*y such materia:

INConsisiercies or apparent matenal misstatements,
we are required (o determre vwihether this gives rise
to a matena: m sstatement in the Ananciat
staternents themselves, If, pased on -2 work we

have performed, we corciuds tnat there 2 a

reateriab r ns of the other :nformation, we

are required to report that fact
We have notming 1o reposrtin this regard

Opintons on other matters prescribad
ry the &&mg&&mm At 2006
N our opInion, basea o tre work urdertaker in

S
“he courze of the audit

« the inforrmation given e the Strategic repst ard

the Drectors report for the Franc al year for

wh Ch the francial staenents are prepared is

consistent with the Anancal staterrents; anc

« the Strategic report and Direclors’ report nave
beer prepared ir sccordarce with acp.icaole

icgal requirermer

nd understarnd rg of
Darer‘t\’_‘ompj oand its
1=

ine Greun a

erpironrrent shta ned in the course of tne audit,

we have rot igentified rratenal misztaternerts in

tne Sretegic repor: or Dorectorsy report.

We have notrirg to repo-tin respect of the

following matiers 1in relation to which the

Elelels

Corrpanies AC 2306 requires w3 1o repor to you |

NSUr SOl o

* SUegLae accy JU"‘T\’ g racords rave nol oeen keg

G retul Mg agequare fC‘!’ Gl @l nave ot been

Y S, o

Company financial sistemen's are rot
(=)

rent with tne ECcouTing n

ertam disclesures of Directors remuneraticn

[

scecified oy law are not made; o

= we hgva not recerved zll the irfermation and

explaraticrs we regure for our audit.

Besponsibiities of diresiors
As explained rnore fully in tie Directors
respomsibstitie slaternent set cut on pafed 25 and
30 the Grectors are responsicie for the prep
of the financ 2l staternents and for being sa w@f’ed
trat they gve a true and fairr view, anc for such
irternal cortrol as the Directors determine is
recessary to enabs the pr carator of Fnanci

ﬂ)

migterial

resctaterment, whether due to fraud o error

the ﬁﬁamciai stztements. the Dreciors
G assessing the Groug's and the

Gy o continue as a going

ble, matters relates

g the going concern

s the Directors either

Group or the Paran
erations, or have no

Aradditor’s responsibilities for the audid
of the Hnancial statemeants
Cur obpectves gre to oblain reascnakie sssurance
zbodt whether tne financia. staterner h

are free from rratenal mis

1o fraua o error, and o issue an audioor's report

oL Opin 01 Reasorable assorance s

trat ncludes o
sel ¢

an audit conduacted in accordance with [5As (<

of assarance, but s rat a guarantee that




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considered capable of
detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Iregularties, includ.ng fraua. are instances of non-
compliznce with laws and regulatons. We des’gr
grocedares . oane witn odr respons tilites, outlined
avove, to detect irreguianties, including fraud. The
risk of not detectng a material m:estaternent dus o
cof not detecting one
resulting frorm error, as ‘raud may involve deuberate
concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
The
extent to woich our procodures are capabie ©
defaled

fraud iz higher than the sk

misrepresenations, or through ccllus on.

P
|
cetecting rregulanties, includng fraud s
nelow However the primary responsit ity for the
oreventior and detectior of fraud rests with botn

those cnarged with governance of the entity and
ranagement

Cur approach was as follow

« We obia
regulatory frameworks thaf a
Group and determined thal the maozst significant

are those that reate (o regerting framework (FRS
102 ard the Companies Act 2006,

ined an understanding of the legal anc
re applicable to the

{
»
o
o]
]
[}

« We ungds row Forn Trading Lirmited is
frarnewcrks by making
nagement. those charged with
resgons.ble for legal
dres as to any fraud risk
ty, ncluding whether

COMmplying w
enquines of ma
governance ana those
and comiplance procad
frarmework within the

a formal fraud risk assessmeni s comnoleted. We
corroborated our engures through reviewy of the

followirg documentat on or performance ¢f the

follow:rg procedures:

- obtaning zn understanding of enuty-level

controls and cons.dering the influence of the
control enviconment;

obta.ning ar understanding of policies and
pre
with
comg.ance with such policies s moritered
ana enforces: obtainirg an undersianding of

cecures Ir place regarding complance

aws and reguiations, inclad ng how

rmanagement’s process for identify ng anc

responding to fraud nsxs, INCiUoNs pregrams
s 3
rsx<s

deter ar

ang conucls established to adaress
identified, or otherwise prevent,
detect fraud,

ard how senior managerment

Monitors those programs and conirsls;

« review Of board meeting mnutes in the senod
1 up o date of signing.
» We assessec the susceptibility of the Group's

financial statements tc rateria. m
nclu
mscusswor‘; within if

-

sgfatement,
g how fraud right cccur by holding a
e audit team which ‘ncluded

denufication of related parfies:

uncerstanding the Group's busicess, the

conuro, envirorment and assessing tha inkerent
risk [of relevart assertons at the sigreficant

aocourt ievel Inc.uding disCusskons with

managernent o gain an Linderstanding of
those areas of the Anancal statements wihich
were susceptibie w fraud, as identified By

maﬂagemeﬂt; and

considered the controls that the Group has
estabushed (© address risks icentiied by

the entity or that otherwise seek 1o prevent,

deter or detect fraud including gaining an
understandirg of the entity leve: corircis and

poices that the Group applies

« Based on this uncerstanding we desw gred our

audit procecures to dentfy ~on-compliznce

with sucn aws and regalatons. Our procedares

nvolved tesung ©
Journa, 2nalytics

fyournal entries througn
aols, with focu

s on manudal

i
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Iindependent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

jaurnals, large or unusual transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business: tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspondence,

if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsrespansibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’'s report,

AR EES
i

This report is made solely to the Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by taw, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body. for our
audit werk, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

ﬁ\/\r\/&&% /\L_L_IQ

Michael Kidd (Senior statutary auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Grour profit and loss account for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note

Turnover 1
L,cst o sales
Gross profit
Adm n. JE expanses
Operatmg prohtl{lcss) 2
Dt incore 1
ncome from otner fixed asset investments

Share of cperating proht njoint veriure

raft on disposal of subsidiares and jomt venture &
Ctner irfarest recevabte ang aimilar necrme 5
rterest pJ,f:xo'f ang wm ar ¢ r~ Gl <}
Proﬁtl(loss) before taxation

Tax on pro ft/f /

Proﬂtl(loss) for the fma nt:|at year

Attributable to Fern
Minority interest

31310

{restaten)
2022 2021
____E000 £000
711,830 425302
(410,883) (221.277)
”‘""”5“66,"515"”“”W"mzoa G5
(258,251)
42,606
3,550
5,249
29,533
130
(33,554) (26,067}
47608 (22667
{16,294) (8,349)
Cwae mon
37,932 (27,00%)
_(&622) 4067

" (31.012)

Al results relate to continung activiz es Note 26 details the prior penca agjusiments

Group statement of comprehensive income for the yvear ended 30 June 2022

Prohtl(loss) for the financial year

Other comprehenswe income
Moverrents n casn fiow hedges

'orelg VexRchisnge qalr\/ lo&ﬂ on reranslalon o Jubql’ﬁcz 125

Other comprehens:ve income for the year

Total comprehenswe income for the year

Attributable to
* Owners of the parent

olling interests

{restated)
2022 2021
£:000 £'000
T 31310 (31012)
77,985 44,983
18,561 (333)
96,546 44650

- 127,856 T

134,478

17.645

4008
13 638

13638
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Group belanos shaat a5 3t 38 June 2042

(restated)

2022 2021

MNotwe £000 L (;OC

leedassets e b <« et = e et it et i e e a e A e e rin e TG S ER A R b e e R
Irtangisie asasts 2] 557,708 576,739
Tangible azzets E 1,893,430 1581682
Irvestments s 35,452 11,000

2486590 216021

Stecks L2 184,479 94,711
=Nk 13 623,161 598007

nora tran ona

yank ard r harid 11 256,415 17/ 478

T e m1,054ossm o 865 191

Crednors amounts failmg due \mthm one year o 4 o (256 152) - 2”2 Ofg)
Net current assets 7 ) S 807 905 6F3 132
Totalassets less current lnabllmes - - - 73 294 493 - 28.)2 ,55
(992 425) (903,339)
Prowstons for I|ab||.|taes (82 620) o 41, 372;
Netassets ------------------------- - - 2 219 448 V l 8‘%7 342

Capital and reserves &

led Lp erare capital 13 161,662 149676
ro prerium acoount 364,882 173118
Merger reserve 1,635,569 1,440,257
Cash flow hedge reserve 63,006 {14,979
Profand iwss accaurt (2 770) 136 049
e e L , 222 sa0 S 1 aoa 121

(2,901} 5721
Capltalemployed oo e 2,219,448 1 887842

Credltors amounts failmg due after more than one year

Motz 25 detals the prior penod ad;ustmenis

Trese consoldated friarca. siaterrents on 5 to Sz were agproven by the Boars of drectors on

- 2
> z
& Decerier 2022 a-d are signad o trar behait by

PS Latham

™ -
Lilrestor

Regiserad rumiper 12601634
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Company balance sheet as a3t 30 June 2022
2022 2021

Mote £'000 £'000
;’xedass“s . e o '
Im vestments 1 2,539,978 2 116 366
- 2539878 2116366
Currentassets - '
Debtors 13 39,888 50,383
Cash at bark anrl 10 hand 11 6 422 L 5?‘3
Creditors: amounts falling due withinoneyear 14 (449) (zz,gz.zﬁ”
Netcurrentassets asg6r 78080
Totala;;;;ts less é:zrrent habslutles S 2 585 839 214_) 348
Net assets o 2585839 2145348
Capital and reserves
Cated up share capital 18 161,662 149676
Share prermivrm account 364,882 173,118
Merger rezerve 1,986,457 1.761.145
Profitand lass sCC’)Jnt 72,838 31409
Tota-E;E;;;I;oldem funds T 2,585,839 W? 143 348 N
The Company bas elacted 1o take the exemption under section 408 of the Compares Act 2006 not to

present ire Comipany profit and loss account Tne proﬁt for the financial pericd dea:t with in e financial

taterrents of the Company was £236,742.000 (2 loss of £157,504,000)

These firancial statements on pages 35 to 92 were aporovea oy the Beard of direciors on
rid are sigred on their behal® by

ar

PS Latham
Director
Registered number 12601638

16 Decermper 2022
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Group statement of changes in egulty for the year ended 30 June 2022

Called up Share
share premium
capital account

HEE € BRhabat Sherk erboRRhefiE SeusRREs € 4 e

Merger
reserve

E£'000

Cash flow
hedge
reserve
(restated)

£000

Profit
and loss
account

(restated)

Total Non-
share- controlling
holders’ interest
funds
{restated}
E£'000 £000

Capital
empioyed
(restated)

EQ00

[

3t 1 daty < 70 “ 578 E
[ 138435 1668982 9570 1,678,552
fnoroenod - - - 3,875 13828 17703 - 17703
acjusirents (ncie: 26
alarce 3¢ ar 5 ce
e 138435 - LE35%69 (55.062) (27356 1GO6685 9570 1696255
- - - - [27.005; (27,005 (4,007 (31,012}
_ _ _ 44,087 - 44583 - 44983
335 1223} - {333
- - - 44 GR2 {31n 44650 - 44,650
- - - 44953 {27.338) 17645 {4,007 13,6328
g
Tarsing on - - - 183% 1831 {18421 (1)
BLsInNg s S auc
= - - s - 195312 - - -
11685 173118 - - - 184.80F - 184,803
{444} - - - {A.392) 6,843) - 6,843}
149676 173118 1420 257 {12,979 135,045 1884,121 3721 1887842
Balance as at
£ July 2021 (restated 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 {14,979) 136,049 1884121 3,721 1,887,842
Profit for the - - - - 37,932 37,932 (6.622) 31,310
financial year
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
1oss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries

o 58207 30 rure
K
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Calted up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and logs share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
E'000 E'000 £000 E'00Q £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Other
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense) for - - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622) 127,856
the ysar
Utilisation of merger _ _ 195,312 _ (195,312) _ _ _
reserve
Shares issued during 11,986 191764 - - - 203750 - 203,750
the year
Balance as at
30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 2,770) 2,222,349 {2,901) 2,219,448
Mote 26 aetals the prior senod ad ustments
Company stalement of chanoes in eauily for the year ended 320 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
o ) . . . £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Balance at incorporation - - - - -
Lass for the financial year - - - 1157,504) {157.504)
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312} 195,312 -
Total comprehensive income - - (195,312 37.808 157504
Shares issued during the y=ar 150,120 173,118 1,986.457 - . V2309888 |
Shares cancelled during the year (444) - 15.399) (6843) :
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31,409 " 2,145,348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236741 . - ‘236,:74;1 .
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 1953120 e
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 41,429 ) 236,741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - T 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - . -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,086,457 72,838 '?,585,53§ f
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Group statement of cash flows for the vear &

F T 2 S U

Cash flows from operating activities

Proftlloss) for the 'mancial yvear attnibutable to the owners of tha garent

Adjustments for:
Tax on profuiloss)

Interest recevable and siriar mcome

e and other sirlar charges
Frofit on cisposal of subsidiaries and jont venure
Incame from jont venture

Ircerre frarm fixad asset investrents

Aracrrisation ana -nparment of intangible Axed assels

Cepreciation of tang

Noa-cash saflf coss

Maoversents ar denvatves and fore.gn exchange

Increass mn stock

Increase/{decr

Cash flows from mvestmg actlv:tles

Purcregse 0F subsichary undertakir gs (et of cash acquiraa)
Sale of sunsidiasy undertakrgs and jo ~tventura
Purckase of tangble assoets

Purcrase of mtanginle assets

Purcrase of uristed invesimeants

Sale of unlisted ivestmerts

Interest receved

‘rrorﬂr rorm pﬂ ventare

Net cash used in mvestmg actlwtles

Cash flows from financing actl\ntles
Proceeds from financing

Al

Irie

Repaymers of fanang

Froceeds from share zs.e

Qﬂ‘ oel a*mn of <r‘4rt

Net cash generated from ﬁnancmg actw:tles

Net (decrease)l:ncrease in cash and cash equwalents_
Casnanc ca

Exchanges gars on <ath and <as

“,
=

N equiva.ents at the ceg noemg of the vear

G

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2022
nded 30 June 2022

MNate 2022
E’OOO .

37932
7 16,294
6 (130)
6 33,554
8 {29,532)
{5,249)
8 45,762
9 101,802
3,040
(18,044)
{19,829)
31,022
{173,956)

19 {6,622)
41,897

(52,377)
101,778

(322,446)

(7.222)

(124,203)
10 105,000
6 130

201,719
(32,319)
(32,013)
203,750

o

341,137
83 694

i1 172,478

243

1 256,415

25,853

_(299.340)

{rostatod)
2021

{(27.005)

8,349
(897
36,068
(28,568]
(1,755}
{449}
37,704
8465/
8,875
(19,788}
(5,701
249,374
6,871
(4,007}

(l Tr l)

341 117

(221,987}
34,503
(110,457)
(875)
(29,617
20133
59/
1077

(3”0 220)

(55,552}

(212,676}
184,355

(€,399)

(70,268}

{34577)

206,688

367

172478

£000

e 256 deta s the pror pencd adiusinants.
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Statement of accounting policies

Lompany information

Fern Trading Limated Cthe Company’) 15 & private company lirmited by chares and incorporated on 14 May
2020 Tne comoany 1s domiciled in England, the United Kingaorn and registered under company number
12601636, The address of the recistered office is at 6th Flocr, 33 Holtern, London, England, BECIN 2ZHT

Statement of compliance

Tthe Group and indiviaual firancial statements o’ rern Trad:rg Lurred have been prepared in complance

A\,coummg Standards, ‘nciuding F.nancial Reporting Stardard 102, 'The Finaraial

wein Umited Kingdo
Reporung Stendard appacab.e in the United K ngdom and the Regputlc of relang (FR5 1027 and the
s Act 20'J6,

Cormparue

Basis of preparation of financis! statements

The Ananc al statements have been orepared on a going corce basis, under the hustoncal cost corvention,

a5 modified by the recogrit on ’)f certain Ainancia asiets and labiities measurad at fair vaiue, and in
accodance witk tie Compan'es Act 2006 ard appicatie accountng steandarcs in the United '<-f:gdom Tre

principal accountng polc:es, whicn have been apelec

ne year, are set out pelo

The corsoidated financal staternents include the results of al' subsidianes owned by Fern Trading Lirmitens
as listeg ir rote 29 of the annual inancial statements. Certa' r companies of these subsidianes, which are
listed 1n note 23, have taken tne exempton from an audit for the y\,fr Eféded 30 Jure 2022 perrmitted oy

section 4794 of Corrparies Act 2006 In order 1o alicw these subsiaia to tzke Me aucit exempuan, the

v-\

es
parent comrpany has gven a statutory guarantee, n lre with sect on 479C of Comnanres Act 2C08, of al!
! Y 9 ¥

the outstarding net uabiliies as at 30 June 2022

Golng concern

The Group's and the Companry's business aciivities, tegether with the factors likely o affect «s future
development, performarce and position are set out tre Strategic Report on pages 4 to 14 The financiat
nasition of tne Group, its cash flows, [guidity oos-ton ard borrow:ng faciities are gescrnbed in the inancal

revieyy on sages 23 to 27 Tre principal r'sks of the Group are set out on pages 16 to

The Directors perform an annual going concern review that considers the Grouo's ability 1o meet its
finarcal obl\gat:ons as they fail due, for a period of at least twelve montris after the date that the financia!
statements have been signed.

Due to the chal enging market condrions maragereant have performed an assezsmeant Lo determing
wnether there are any material uncertainties aris ng nat coule cast sigruficant doubt on tne anitity of the
Group to confinue as a going concarn Ne sigrificant 1ssues have been noted ard as a corseguence, the
diraciors believe that the Groun s we. placed t¢ manage I's business rnisks successfully despite the current
uncertain economic culicok

St Bt
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Statement of accounting policies

reaching this conclusion the Directors nave reviewed e Fhaancial mpact of tre urceriainty on the
Group's baance sheet, profit and 1css and cash flows with spe

iceranon gven o the folow:rg

Areverse stress test was performed on the base case ‘orecast o ascertar what sceraros woud esultin

risks to the Groups liquidsty pos ©on The test showea even i ar unlikey scenaro of a sigrificant redact on

of reveniie of 46%, the Groug i< aole Lcosts ard rreet all Lalzities ag they fall

due for at least & year from the ¢a erments when utilising the avalable

faciities winin tre Group

Tre Groep nes a sumber of financing facliues that contan covenants recanng the Group ¢ maintain
specifed financial ratios and corrpy with certaim oner inarcal covenarts. Trese Gnancial covenants are
ested at «east guarterly, and, at the date of this report, the Group < 1r comglarce with ail its Arancial

covenants Stress tests on reasonsbly plausibie scenanos sucn as a S\g’"\f‘l’“ ant reduction r EBITDA of 84%
over time have been used o assess the covenant requiremen:s for the atieas: the nexs twelve moriths ard
all covenaris nave beorn fore cast 1o be met ever under the stress test scerario, in the going corcern per od

<2, "he Group hac avalac.e cesh of E256m and nesdroom avalabe of E44lm inciudiog &

aciity of E2T0m Jebt of S8Em s dus 1o mature i e3s ran one year, with the remrainder

At 30 Jure 2
revoivrg cred
of £856m Dayab\,e N more *ha" ooe year The Groups fac it es, repayment dates ang undrawn amodnts are

set out in Note 16 Loans and 3orrowngs

Key accounting juagemert a~a estrra made witn cons.deratior given to the currenr
=Conomic cutook. Key estimates inctude loar recoverasility, valuat or of work in progress,

i

e
decornmsuon g provisang, migairment of gocdwill and investrm

Wl

business compirations ard hedge

accountng. Details are set cut on pages S0 te 52

Bzsed on the zbove assessment of current economic condiions ardd the rrpact on : rowp's firancial

. tne dire

position, guidity ard fimrancal covenar

Stors have concilded that the Group and Company Fss
deqguate resources o continue 17 operauonal existence for the naxt 12 mentas. Trus, they continue 1o

jsbl

ot
~

dopt the going concen 5as's of accouniing N prenar ng the annuat drancal statemerts

Exemptions for gualifying entitiss under FRE 102

FRS 202 alicws a gquaifying ently certam Sisclosure exempions, susject o certan cond tons, which have
peen complied w ik, incluaing ~otihcation of, and na oojection 10, the use of exermpticns oy the Compary's
shareholders.

“he Company has taker advantage of the

@]
w
»
i
pu}
O
=
A
o
a3
]
]
o
G
iy
%
—
=
o
=

statemrent o

a1l

S prenar ngG s 2 qua. fying enoty a~d t-e corseadated
e

starerent of cash ficws, imclugeg 'n these financ 2! statemeris, Included the Compary s cash fows:
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Statement of accounting policies

Basiz of consolidation

The consclidated financal staternents ncluds the results of Fern Trading Lirmited and all 45 sLbsidiary
undertakings made up to the same accounting date. Al intra-group balances, transactions, ircome and
experses are eliminated in full or consolidation. Tne resuits of subsidiary andertakings acquired or disposed
of dunng tae pedoc are included or excwuded frorn the noome statarmearit from the effective date of

SCQUISIIGN Or J1gpGseal

All undertzkings over which the Group exercises control, be ng the power to govern the fnancial and

=2rating policies so as to obtam benefts from ther aciivities, are corsoldated as subs diary undertakingcs
VWhere a suzsidary has direrent accounting pollues to the Group, adjustmernts are made o those
sLbsicrary finanacial staterments 1o apply e Group's accounung polcies when preparing the consolidated
finarnciai statements

Aryy subsidary undartakings or associates sold or zcouired dunng the year are ncluded up to or from, the
dates of change of contral or change of significant influence respectvely
Vhere the Group has written a pur ootan over shares ne'd by a nor-cortrailing rtarest, {ne Group

derecoecnises the non-conroling interest and instead recognised centingent deferred corsideraton liahilizy
witnir other payables for the estimated armount Lkely 2 be pa'd to the no-controlling interest on exercise
af thcse opticns Tne residual amount, regresenting the difference hetween any consideration paid/pavable
and the non-conreding interests snare oF net asasts, 's recogrised a3 goodwill Movements in the
estimated liability after initial recognition are recognised ac goodwil..

Foreign currancy

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group francial statements are presented in cound ster’rng and rounded to theusands.

The Compary's funcuonal and presentation currency s poLnd sterling and rounded o tholsands.

il. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactons a<e translateg irts the functicnal currency using tne spot exchange rafes at
the dates of the Transactions. At each period ena foreign curr@nCy monetary items are translated using the
closing -ae. Non-monestary tems measured at histor cal cost are translated using tha exchange rate at the
date of the transacticn arnd non-ronetary iterms meazured at fair value are rreasured using the exchange
rate whern fair value was determined Foreign exchange ga:ns and losses resulting from the sett emoent of
transactions and from the translaton a2t pencd-end exchange raes of monetary assets and labiities

dencminated i foraigr currencies are recogrised in the proft and loss account.

Al fore gr exchange gams and losses are presented in the prods ana loss account within adrririsirative
expenses’

iii. Translation
The trad ng resilts ©

Group undertakings are translated mto pounds sterling at the average exchamge rates

for the year. The assets and labilities of overseas undertakings, mcluding goodwil and fair value adjustments
arsing on acglisition, are translaed at the exchange rates ruling at the year-end Exchange aujustmer::s

arising from the ret{anslatiom of cpering net investmerts and from the trarslation of the profits or losses

at average rates are recognised I 'Other compranensive ircome’ ang aitoczated w non-conraliing interes:
as approprate.

L
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnover

= {ealowing.

Tre Group operates a number of

» Energy
Turncver from the sae of electnity generated by solar farrs, winc generatirg assels, reserve power

p.anis and piomass and andfill sies s recognized on an accruals basis n the per od in whick s

generated Revenue from lorg-term govermen tacked oftake agreemeants, sucn as the Fenewan.e

Chlicat on Ceruficalion ("ROCT scheme are accrued in e period ~ wh'cn it relates to Turnover from the
(=

zae O fertibser oy biomass and landfill busine

5

sses s recogrised o pys.cal dispatch

1

¢« Healtrncae

Turrcver is recogr.sed when the significant nsss and rewaras of ownershup of retirerment properties have
O a ne arn frevenue can be recogrised reliabiy, and it s

Turncyver

TOUTSE O DLE

orovded

reerment Arrargement fees are spread over e life o

+ Fiore
Turnover s recognisea at tne farr value of the consideration receiven for interner conmectiviny and relaed
|7 services provided r the normat course of pusiness, ard s shown ret of VAT Tormover is recegnisec
based cr fhe date the service 15 oroviced

« Housze building

Turnover is recognised on lega. compieucr of the sale of prooerty, land and comrrrercia spaces Turnower

from housing assocation contracts 15 recoarized by refererce to thie value 0f wark completed as a

,
o
el
0 =

propertion of the tot ~tract value

he Group provices a range of benefis to errpioyees, ~Clucing arnrual borus arrangements, paid hoiday
a e

i. Short-term benefits
Shari- terrn benefits mciudng Podday pay and cthar simia

exgere rfthne nesod inwh o the seryce §rece veg

ii. Defined contribution pension plan
A defred cortroutior par s g pension plar arder whon the Grougp pays

separate ert iy Tince tre con

—

ne contrioulons ars
CCruals ning balance sheel

drririsierad ‘urds

[cER ]
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Statement of accounting policies

iii. Share-based payments

Cash-settied share-based payrmants are rrmieasured at far value at the balance sheet date The Group
recognises o Lability at tne balance sheet date based o these farr values, taking inte account the esumated
rumber of units that wil actualy vest and the current pronaruca of the vesting perod,

Cnanges i the value of this liabuty are recognised in the income statemen:

The Grouo has ne equity-settled arrangernenis,

Finanose costs

Finance costs are charged G the proit ard oss account aver the term of the debt using te effective

interest metnod so that the amount charged is at a consant rate o the camrying amount Issug Costs are

™ O

a
initally recogn’sed as a reduction in the proceeds of the assoiatea captal irstrument and released to the

proft and loss accoant over the rerm of the debt
Lurrent and defevred tay

¥ 18 recogmised N ne staterent of rcorme and retained sarmings, except trat g changs atinbutsbie w an
and excerse recognised as otner comprehensye income or to an Jem recogn sed directly

=
@

o]
[
e

is also recognized I cther comprehensve inceme or directly n egqulty rescectively

The current .ncome tax cnarge is calculated on the basis of tax rates ard laws that have ceen eracied or
subistart'vely enacten by the balarce sheet date in the courtries where tne Company operates and
generates ncome

Deferred oalances are recognised i respact of all timing differences that have origirated but nol raversed
oy {ne Balance sheer date, exceor that,

be recognition of deferred tax assets is limited o tne exient that it s probable that they wi i be recavered
g
against the reversal of deferred tax liahilities or cther future taxab.e profits; and

o Any deferred tax balances are reversed If and when aill conditions for retaining assocated tax allowances
rnave been met

Deterred tax balances are not recoqrised i respect of permanent differences except in rescect of pusiness
cormbinatinns when deferred tax is recognised on the alfferences tetween the fai- vaiues of assets acquired
and e future tax deducuors avalable for them and tne differences cetween the fair values of liatilities
acguired and the amount that w il be assessed far tax. Deferred tax s determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or supstantively enacied by the balarce sheet dae

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method
The cost of a business combinat or is tne “ar vaiue of tre consideration given, liabisties incured or

assumed and the eqguity mstruments issued plus the costs directly attributanle (o the businegss combination
Where cantrol 1s achieved In stages the cost is the considerafion at the date of each transacton.

On acquisition of a business, far values are attributed to the idertifiabie assets, lianlities and cortingent
gapilities unless the fair value cannct ce mesasured reliaGly, in which case the value is incorporated as
coodwii Where the fairr value of con tmng’t l'ak ities cannot be reliably measured they are disclosed

o the same basis as other cortirgent Labidties.
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Statement of accounting policies

Goodwill recogmzed regresents the excess of tne fair value and directly attributable costs of the purchase
cansiderat:on over the fair values to the Groun's interest in the ident-A9able net assets, lishilties and
contingent labivties acquired

cash-generatrg units {CGU'S) that are expected o cenefit frorm

On acguiz ver, goodwil s al

tre comoration

CGoodwill 13 amorised over its exp

ed usetu ife wrich is determ nec tases on the estmated lfespan of

(;EV

assets acquied. Where the Groug is unabie to make a reliabe estimate of usefu vfe, goodwll s

b’)
Ln
)
h
[l
—
8]
=

amorised over a nercd not excesding en years. Goodw s rev ewed and as ‘mpairment

rdicators on ar anrual basis and any impairment is charged o the ore™t an loss

Tangible fived assetls

Tangible fixed assets are swated af cost wess deprec ator Depreciation s provided art rat
off the cost of fxad azset ‘ :

cuiated o write

£
205

duzl value, cver their expected us

Ty -
5 oeprel

cormmences frorm the service Land and assets 1in the course of constuction

S Lrought intg

are not depreciatea. The estrmatec useful [n

Aseets in the course of construclion are stated at cost. These assets are rot gepraciaed untl they are

advarcenent or C)"AV‘QC‘" N market pr ca, mccate that residua. vallo

or useful

resicual value, useful Ufe or degreciation rate are amended proscectvely 1o

reflect the ~aw circumstances. The assets are reviewsd for impa rrment if the aoove factors ndicate that the

Carry ng amodrt may e imearred

Cains and losses on disposals are determiinec by companing the grocesds with tne Carrying amoLn anc a'e

recogrised witrin grofit or lass

Intangible assels

ntangbie assets

ted amortizaton and accumdlated imparment 2s3es
Amortsaton is calcdlated, wiing tne ctraight-lne meincs. to allocate e deoreciahle amourt of the assets

2zt maled wiefu. ves, as "olows

~oexnenses are inciuged n adrmre

Cevelopraert ngits relate to plant rng consent o buid a
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Where factors, sdch as cha r“;es ir market price, indicate that residual value or useful ife have cnanged, the
‘esidual value, L,\eu ife or arncrtisation rare are amended prospectively o reflect the naw circumstances

ssets are revieweo for impalrment f the above factors ind cate that the carrying amount ray

on the Group assesses agreements tha: transfer
whetner the arrangerment <. or corntans, a lease pased on the substance of the arrargemen: and wretrier
sricule be classified as either a firance leas

Lzases of assets that wrarsfer substartially ait the rsks and rewards incidental to ownersh g are classified as
finance leases, Firance leazes are capitaused at the commencerent of the legse at the fair value of the
leased asset and ceprecated over the shorter of the lease term and the eshimated usefut life of tre asset
are assessad for imparrment &t eacn reporting date,

Leases that do not rancier all the 71sks and rewards of ownershio are ¢.assified as operaung @

Payrrents under operating leasas are char ged o the profit ana 1oss accownt on a straight-line
pencd of the lease

Investmenis
The Compary holds investrenis in a subsid.ary a: tless accumiulated impairment .osses, If an
impairment oss is sthsequerty reverced, the Carrying amount of the imvestment 1S Increasec to the revised

estimae of {s recoveratle amount, but orly 10 the extent that the revised carry.ng arrount dees not exceed
the carrying arnount that weuld have teen determined hac no impairment woss teen recegnised in pror

periods. A reversal of an impairment (0ss is recognised in the profit and ioss account.
Casgh
Casn incluges cash in nand ard deposits repayable on dermand. Restricted Cash represernts cash for which

the Grouo does not have immeciate and direct access or for which regulatory or legal requirements restrict
the use cf the cash.

Stocks

Raw rnatenals. spare parts and consumantes are valueo at tne lower of cost and net realisable vaiue. Where
recassary, a provison s made for obsolete, slow-rmroving and defective stock. Costis determined on the
first-'r first-out (FIFG) rmetvoa

Fuel stocks (MBM and litier! are valued on an average cost basis aver one 1o two months and provision for
undsabe litter 1s reviewed mortrly ard aophea to off-site stock

Fuel stock of straw has been valued at the histerical cost per tonne of straw A provision for unusable straw
s wdentifed an an indivndual stack basis anc 1s reviewed monihly. Stocks are used or a firstin, first out
UFIFC) bas ¢ oy age of straw

Stocks of ash at Fiorcphos are valued at the lower of cost and net reansable value to the Group

Stacks of property deveicpment work in progress ("WIP') are stated at the lower of cost and net realisaole
value Cost cornpnses direct matenals and, where applicabie, direct labour costs ang those overheads that
Fave peen incurred 1IN Dringing the stocks to thelr present locatiors and conaition,
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Statement of accounting policies

Al each reporting date, an asseszment is made for impainmient Any excess of the carrying amouart of
et ‘

swocks over its estimazed selling price 2 to \_umpte‘re and s

r?-’.‘QgWS%C 3 @l \rr"pa:'me% Hel3

’Dm

rrrough the profit and loss accourt Reve als of Imparment 0ss2s are 3130 recogrised in the profs ans
g :

b

ioss account.

Aocrusd incomes

Accrued imcome on lcans 5 Calculated at tre rate of mter set out i the lean contracts. Energy income s

accrueg over tne perod n whick it Nas been generated.

Detorred income

Deferred income is recogn’sed in accorda N the terms set out 1nt the conmat. Deferred iIncormea s

released to the profit and loss account in the period to wnich it relates.
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tSectors 11 ang 12 o FRS 102 1 respect of francia nstraments

Financizl assets

Basic 9nanca assets, including trade and other recevables and cash a~d tank caiances are nially

recogrises at tramsaction price, unigss the arrangement const tutes a firarcng transaction, where the
fransaction 1§ measured at the present vaiue of the future rece:gls d'scounted at 2 market rate of Interest
Suckr assals are subsequertly carr ed at amertised Cost Using 172 effective interest metrod

rmeasured at amaortised st are S roDjecTve
evidence of impa rment f an assel s impaires the mpairmert 103515 the differer

-

At toe end of each r ecortmg pancd firancal o

ne carrying

amount and tre present vaue of e estemated cash flows aiscounted at the assats orig Fective interes
rate, Tre irrgairment ioss 15 recegnised it oreft or loss

Other anancial assets, including investments r equity Imstrumenis which are nict subsiciansas, asscoiates or

Jjaint ventures, are nitially measured at fair value, whicr s normally tne rsnsaction proe Sach a
subsequently carr eﬂ at fair vawe and the changes in fair vaive are recogn sed r profit or 10ss, exce

mvestrments in eguity instrurments trat are nct publicly traded ard wrose fair values cannot pe me

elakly are m easwed at cost less mparment
Fnancia assets are cerecogn sed when (&) tne conractual rghis to the cash flows from tne assel expire or
are settlea, or (b) supstartially al! the nske ara rewards of the ownershp of she asset are trars®erad to

another party or () contro. of e A transferred to anotrer party who bas the cractica’ ablty
o

3 33 02
oo artlaterally sell the asset 1o an urrelated theg party witrout impos ng adaitiona. restachions

Habilities
agitties. incl.d ng rade srd ot~er gayaoes, ba~k loars, loars fr elow Groun comoanies
AUES, GT8 N lAay re:ogﬁsec a3t Urarsacuon o riess tre a gETIent CCNsiiRUies 2
sactcn, where ke de sroment is rreasured ~e futurs rece pts




41 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Statement of accounting policies

Debt rstrurrents are subsegdently car-ied at amerused cost, \J‘:Ir’q the effective interest rate method. Fee
paid on the estapiskhmert of oan facilities are recogrised as transaction costs of the (oan 1© the extent that
t1s prebahle mat some ar al of the facility wll be drawn down. In Thu case. the fee s deferred until te
draw-down occurs Ta the extent tnere is no evidence that -t is probable that some or all of the facility will
oe drawr dowr, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for uguidity services and amortised over the periog
of the facility to which it relates

Trade payables are obhgations to pay “or goods or services that nave been acquired .n the ordinary Course
of business rom supoliers. Accounts payable ars classified as current Lab lties if payment s dug withn one

ear cr less i not. they are presenied as non-current Labilties. Trace ables are reco ised initatly at
Y i
e el

tranzachicon price and subsequaently measured at amortised cost using h Hecuve interest method

abilities are derecognised when the lizbility is extinguished, that is when the contractual ahlugaton
s dischargea, cancalled or explres,

Frovisions

Provisiors are made wrere an event nas taken place that gives the Group 3 legal or constructve obligation
that probably requires setlerent by a transfer of ecoromic werefit, and a retabie estimate can be made &
the arnount of the obligation

Provisiors are caarged as an expense 1o the pro it and loss account in the year that the Group become

a
aware of the ocblgation, anc are measured et the best esumate at the balance sheat date of the exg;\e'mmre
©

required 1o settle the otligation, takirg into account relevant risks and uncertanites.

Hedging

The Group apslies hedge accouning for transact:ons entered irio 1o mana g the cash flow exposures of
e swa

nDorrowings. Interest rat aps ae neld to manage the irterest rate exposures and are des grated as cash

flow necges of foatirg rate borrowings Changes in the fair values of deruvaﬂves designated as cash flow
hedges, and whick are effective, are recogrised drectly ir equity. Ary ireffectiveness in the hedg ng
relationship {oeing the excess of the cumueative Change in fal' vaiue of the hedging Instrument since
neeption of the Medge over the curtulative change in the fair vaiue of the hedged e since nception of
ha proﬁt and foss

the hedgel is recogrized 1 the

The gain or loss recogrised i other comprehensive income s reciassifiied to e proht and loss m
accordance wth the cash flows of the hedged tem. Heage accounting is discontinued wren the nedging
nstrument exgires, no longer reets tne hedgng cntera, the forecsst transachicn s no longer 7ighly

propable, the nedged debs instrument is derecognrised o the hedgng instrument s terminated.

Share capital

Crdinary shares issued by the Groun are reccgnised in equity at toe value of the proceeds received, with the
excess over nominal valuie beng credited o snare premium

Non-controlling interests

Non-cortroling interests are rreastred at therr propertionate share of the acquiree’s idenufiable net assets
at the date of acquisitic

et
'“zs-'nis i

:
g
i x*,zeng%g:w;
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Koy acoounting judgemnents and estimates
a

| staterrants in cornpliance with FRS 10z Sf certair crinral

ﬁ

The preparation of inanc requires the use

z
accounting e O requires rmanagement 10 exercise judgement In appiying the Company's
accounting g

eXperienis an

ates and Judgerents are com \%all/ evaluated ang are based or rnisiorncal

S, 1rwc\.uom at are helieved to pe reasonasle

under the crrcurnstanceas. The key estimates and judgeerts in prepanng these firancial siatermients
J

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {estimate)
2ans and gdvances to custormers, including associated accrued income palances, are “eviewed for

imipa.sment o a quarterly basis In ¢ onrr*cmg the need for g provisicn, managernent cetermine thair best

ars
estmate of tre expecied future cast flows cn a case by case basis. As ins estimare relies or a certair

o

number cf assumptions atzout future everts which rnay aiffer frorr ectual cutcomes, ncuIding e
borrower's ab ity tQ repay interest ana Capita: dug in fLture penods, thas gves rse to judgement as to

setween the carcying value and the far va ue of the debior halance

whiether trere s a shortfall

Management note that prov stans aqamst leans and agvances is a crbcal estimate and ~ave thorefore
performed sensitivity anawsis on the provision T re resuts of aklys 3 conclude trat a cirange
of +/- cre per cert 1 the arnount proviced against the estmated baance at risk would have resuited in

woenditure being charged 1o the income statement Suring the parod See rotwe 13 for the
carry'ng amount of the debtors ard provisiors at 30 June 2022,

ii. Value of property development work in progress (‘WIP‘} (estimate)
Property devoiopment WIF 5 reviewed for mpairmen: a pencdic basis In consdernng the need for a

provisicn, maragemen:t determine ther test esumate of tne recoverale value r~.aﬂagerrer‘f engage ar

expert externa. valuer o orov.de Key assurrpionsz aocu” fufure events wrick may differ from actusl
outcomres, noucing property va.ualions, rate of sales ard cevelogment costs.

These estimates give nsa 1o judgeTent as o wnetrer these s a shortfal between e carrying valie and the
far value of the oalance as af the 30 June 2022 Post year end, managemeant have revieweg the
assumMptions usec 1o determine tne vaide of property developrnent WiP and have observed no changes in
perfermance that woua irpact the valuatior as ot tne 30 Jurne 2022 See note 22 for the carrying anmmount
of tre property developmert W.R

o0

STOLD OWNS two energy gereraT ng subsidiaries in Australa wineh nave eruf.ered figite} purc?ase price
rearments (FPATH in 20159 and 2021, y

9
subsiciar es payfreceve amourts from tre custome: pased on the diferences betv-w:—.eﬂ a ﬁ"x\_d se\a:r‘g orca
i

and "he acrual price for elecncity sold to “he Australian energy market Tre ¢rectors Gelieve e contract s
sitis for tre sae of a non-fnandia e and thhe CF0D s tyo:cal foor

iv. Business combinations (estimate)

The cost of 2 busness cormpinaticn s the fair value ¢f the consideranon gven, nabilites imcurred olus the
caosts directly attnbutac.e to the gusiness combmation Far vsiue of these Ccorrbinat ons s a key estimae
ana maore detas are oroviced on pages 4516 46
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The provision for decomimissioning costs is meacured at rmaragerent s bast estimate of the present val,

of the expenditure recuired o settie the future f\bhgat\orw toy return land on whicn there raticng’ ww‘;d
and solar farms, to its origina. conditen The level of the provisions 1§ deterrmined tC a gniﬁcatt egres oy

Q\
I
0
s
T

the eztimationr of ‘uture dismantling and resicration costs, as weil as the uming of disrmantlemeant

Wind Farms {estimate):

Maragerent noie tnat decomim.ssioning provisionss is a critical est mate and have therefore performed
sencitivity analysis, Tne results of the sensifivity anawsis conclude that a change of +/- ane per centin the
discount rate wouwd nave resulted i £2.1rn increaseddecregse in the provicion. Ses mote 17 for the provision
recogr sed at 30 June 2022 Managemert Lt'lise external expertse 1o provide an estimated cost to
dismantle and nave used a discount -ate of 2% to reflect the time in value of money and the risks specha
to the cohigation

Australian solar farms (judgement):

The Croup s requred to restore the eazed prermises of the solar fanm (0 their ongira conditon at the end
of the ease term A provizior was prevm usly recognised, however in the currert yvear this jLdgemrenrt has
beern reazsesien and managemeant believe the lessor may wish to eitner take fitle of the assels for gither
cor‘etimuem use or to reahisa value . hrough selbrg the assets and as such ¢o not beleve that ar outfiow is

nrocable to settle this restoration obligation

UK Solar {estimate):

Durirg trne year, a thira party performed an assessment of the tace cost of tre Gecomm\ssx,m'ng of the

Croups UK solar farms. The Aindings have resuitec in matenal change ntha cost estimalte and therefore a
orovis-on hias bean recognisen for the first time on some sites. The impact has resulted in 3 provsion berg

raised for £18m o the balance srest decommissioning liability and hxed assets. As at 30 Jure 2022 there s

No impact on the profit and less Sites not g%ected are addressed below,

UK and French Solar (judgment):

Mamagerent pelieve that given tne nature of these particular assets, the lessor may wish 1o either take utle
of the assets for aither continued use or to realise vaiue through selling the assets and as such do not
pelieve that an cutflow 1s probable o sette thrs restoratior cblgation Management wall cortinue to mon:ter

the situation at each balance sheet date.

vi. impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
The value of goodwill netd by the Group and investimerts 1In sutsidary andertakings held oy the Company
s reviewed arnJaally for imoarment. Tre recaoverabiaty of these baances is considered with reference o the
present valde of the estmiated future cash flows Tnese calculatiors use Cash flow croectons which exiend
forward forecast business perforrmance togemer witn assumptions surrounding tre expecied life of the
asset, exterrally prepared forecasts ar’J vaiuations, and any adjustiments mcu:re o the discount rate to taxe
count of business rick The estmated present value of these future cash flows 15 sensitive w the discount
> ard growth rate used N the calculation, all of when require management's jJudgement Testng of the

o

carrying vaiue has oean performmed during the year, which has involved several scenanos being modeled,
Based on this tesang and the resulting imparrment recognised on nvestments, maragement beteves there
is suthcient headroom o support the value of goodwili and irvestments in subsidiary entties

anagement note trat imparment of goodwill and invesimerts s a critcal estirnate and have therefore
performea sensitvity analysis on (Me provisor. The results of 17 e sensitvity analysis conclude that a change
of +/- ore per cent in the amaount provided againg: tne estirmated balance at risk would have resulted in
£5.4%m less/more expenaiture being charged to the moomne statermert daring the period See note 8 for

the carrying amount of the goodwil and nvestments at 30 June 2022
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Analysis of turnover by category

Er':ergy Cper2ions - solar, resar

Energy operglions — biomass ana langfis

Feathicare operations’
Fome buodinng

Fibre operat ors

2022
£'000

42,404

365,958
223,526
45,978
25,034
8,930

711,830

179,820
141 826

e uded oo
and L28 &7

~orne fromn Healthcare ope

21 L3231 Lrrban relabon 0

Misle

BEMCOE v -

Analysis of turnover by geoagraphy

Eurcpe

Fest of wi

Fi7Arm QU2 BLT 2rn reating 1o e sale of retirernient village urire,

2022
£000

b E ke Aua B uhsbemebes o eriadiee

603,911
84,433

25488

711,830

2021

384,799
31893

425,302

£000

8610

Other income

g ne e S

2022
£'000

2021
£'000

Lhiguicated darmages and ngurance proceeds

=

3,550

5454
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2. e SRR

Thiz =5 stated after chargingfcreaiting:
(restated)
2022 2021
£000 £'000

oAb Bt B e e bl AR s R 008 e e A Taf ST E L AN TR AR AR AR E Bk L E R XEEERE FREE SRR H A R G0 B s it e O L TR TREERY

Amcrtsation of intanagible assets inote 8; 37,849 37704

S GREE RS F TR R A9 R PR R TR S N

moament of nlangble assets (note 4) 7.913 -
Zepreaigtion of langiole gusels (nole ) 101,802 84,657

Aaditcrs remaneration - Company and the Group's corsclidated

lina~cial staternents Y F 45 146
Aaditors’ remuneration — audit of Comgary’s subsid:anes 819 1134
Asditors remuneranon - non-awdit services 246 513
ALCIFCes IRMUNGIATION - TaxX COMPUATce Services 482 672
Differerce on fareign exchange 7.772 4402

Croerating leage rertals 13,783 7502

Note 26 detals the pror penod adgjustments

2022 2021
£'000 £000

e b e e ol o ¢

]

Wanoes am saares V 85,432 41,383
Social cecunty osts 7,041 3809
3,233 1676

Other persion costs
95,706 46,868

The Group provides a defired contrbution schemes for its employees in the UK. The amount recogniszed as
an experse for the defined contribut:on scheme is shown in trie 12ble above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021

Number MNumber

PRV Ao "o e HESuEE

Sroduciion 1,032 ‘ 699
Adrnirustration 631 348

Jireciers 3 3

1,666 1050

The Compary nad one emp.oyee other than Directars durning the perioc ended 30 June 2022 (2021, ~one).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
L NN

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

T . g T RSO TSR B uE T DATRIak Dk s x i b e hmemdx@xdes B arhenahad sssdelbed dudohtiekeadf o€ RXEEELORD

176 163

Emcluments

Durng the year no pension contribtions were made in respact of the d rectors (2021 none)
¥ f-

Tne Group has no otfier key managemert (2021 none;
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ryalue i recogrises cyer the vesting oenad

: recognised takes o account the b:st zvalable estimate of the number of u-its
vaest undar the service ard parformance condiions underlying each award granted

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021

Number of Number of
awards awards

Opff r“g [sIH t“,_mu Al ESFIE

1 914.751 1640000
1,763, 563 274 751

‘.Frjn tedd aurg

Ctosmg outstandmg balance R 3,678,314 : 1 914 751

Tre wowal charge for ine year was £2 132,000 (2021 £1.334 000) and at the 30 June 2022 there was g
c

Pabiity of £2,407 000 incused with'n credwors greater tnar one year (2022 £1,324,.000).

& . .

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 pleval

-r“t@'%i*x 21 pank balgnoes 130 957

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
E'000 E ODO

\r"ﬂ"p st N quk Gorron Mugs 32 192 34 "78

Areorusanon of ssue costs o Gank porreangs 2,597 1103

ndorvative oarca nstrurrerts (1,235) 587
33,554 36,068
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
a) Analysis of charge in year

{restated)
2022 2021

£000 £000

B W TENT N penge ML T R e e S SIS et naow R KRR DAY FRABARE RN E LN RS DR 8 Bt nd b b bbb o 5 b ot A e F2en FEE T R D AR RE L PR A SHOR YR

Current tax:

LR corporation tax chargs on proft/fioss) for tne year (297) 1.648
Adiistments in recpect of prior perorls 3,196 (2,866}

Foreg 5,641 -

Total currert tax charge/icradis)

(1218

Deferred tax:

Criginauon and reyersal of bming differences 6,227 2,074
Agjustments in resprct of prior pencds (3.741) {3.558)
Effect of change n tax rares 5,268 11,491

Totat deferred tax 7,754

16294 8349

5,567

b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for tne year s nigher (2021 higher! than the standard rate of corporaton taxin the UK of
19% (2021 19%) The differences are exp.anad betow:

(restated)
2022 2021

£000 - E'000

Profit/(loss) before tax
Proft/ioss) before tax mulliplied oy standaed rate of
corgoration tax in the UK of 19% (2020 19%)

9,045 (4022)

tffects of

Expenses rof deductibe for tax purposes 11,723 16,076
Other effects {868) 1.022
incorne Not texable for tax purposes (8,102} (9,351)
Agjustments in respect of o pencas {545) (6,865)

Effects of change ir tax rares 5,041 11485

Totai tax charge for the year o ‘ - 16,294 8,349

47,604 (21170)

c} Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 ncreased the main rate of UK corcoration tax frorm 18% o
25%, effectve 1 Apnil 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance shest have been measured at 25% (2021 25%)
which represens the future corparation tax rate that was enacted st the balance shieet date,

Mote 26 detaris the orior penoa ad ustments
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8

Software Goodwill Deveiopment Total
{restated) rights

Group . . £000 £'000 ] £'000
o e Rt A - e .
At 1 Juy 2021 restated) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acguned throtgh busimess - 30,042 4,058 34,100
combinations inote 27)
Additons 2,125 - 1040 3,165
Duzposals - {21,118) - {21,118)
Gain on ransiation - 7,930 - 7,930
At30June2022 3089 743456 15314 761,859

Accumultated amortisation

FRreey

AT DUty 2927 leciated 107 155,902 1034 161,043
Desposals - {2.462) - {2462)
Loss on translation - (192) - (192}
‘mparment - 7913 - 7,913
Cn 12 37,314 523 37.849
At 30 June 2022 - B . 119 - 202,475 - 1,557 o -2"!-14,1;51. -

aforthe

Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540,981 13,757 557,708

At 20 June 2021 lrestated) 857 566,700 g,182 576,739

Tne gain on trar slatin~ of “oreign curreroy cencrinated goodwi s recogrisea ncther cormnorehensive

ncome Armoruzaton of goodwil s charged to admmnisirat on Costs.

Detaks of the subsidanes acqured dunng the year erdea 30 Juns 2022 £a1 oe found m note 27

A®]
2]

as

a]

Dur ng the year the group gisposed of 2 wera farms in finiand, as g resuln 2 f accumulated goadell

a
arnortisat On was recogrised in the currert vear and £25 Im of gocdwil. was realised or the sale. Ganon
sale recognised in the prefi ard ([os ik relanss 0 s rantaction was L28m

Impalrrmer of £79rm has cesn recogrised on goodwil (2021 ~one).

N assets nave peen pedged as securty ‘or lanaties at yea” end (23721 nong;

Nce 286 detalls the pr or perod agusireants

i
!
i
1
i
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4

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction {restated)
(restated)
Group _ £'000 £'009 o £000 £00¢ o £000
;:ost ~~~~~~ e s PR RR 353 § AR A R O AL oot m B 5T .

AL July 2021 fresiaied 8,531 17467 1655437 77288 43,277 2,092,000

Addiors 829 1536 73.647 60462 238,008 374480

: "“‘T”h";it:roﬁii 1308 - 51344 - 57,667 110,315

Fxsitarvalue moverent - - 368 - 3,294 3,662

Transfers - 68 1066 20,936 (32,070 -
Diepcsals (135) (75.951) - - (76,086}
At30June2022 10,533 319,071 1745911 118,686 310170 2,504,371

Accumulated déﬁféciation ST S

4410 90,057 414 55% 1.250 - 510,318

183 17130 81,141 3,345 - 101,802

- - {ie2) (221} - {403}

FX rmaoveraern: - - (776} - - (776)

At 30 June 2022 4,593 107189 493732 4,417 - s10,941
Net book value e e et 4 s - Rt

At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430

A* 30 ]uﬂé 2’]21 fréstdt.ed: - 4121 227408 1,280,878 - 25958 43,277 1,581,682

ncluded within tangiole assets are captalised finance coste direcily attributable to bringing te assat into
use. The net carrying amount of assets Fedd under Snance @ases inciuded in plart, machnery, fixiures
fithngs s £51,785,000 (2021 £51,534,000 ). Included in natwork assets 5 a provis.on of £1,023000 for

nd

s3]

chsclete eguipment and develcpment.

The Cornpary had o tangible assets ar 30 June 2022 {2021 none;

Note 26 details the prior penod agiustrments
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Unlisted
investments Total

Group £000 £'000

RS 0§ W E P YMEEARE SRS YRR % EXE LT TR R SatevAch Aa31E Sub frmonadiimh v o bBE R EaE

Cost and net i:;oo;::;;iue ,
At 1Ly 2021 11,000 11,000
Admtons 125,452 129452
Misposas {105,000) (105,000}
At %0 Ju,h,,e znzz e e [ . 35'452 [ 35‘452

AL 30 Jure 2029 11000 11,000

Subsidiary
undertakings Totat
Company £000 £000
c;s‘t”,\ e e + asrman ¢ e s e e o e A% s
AL 30 Sume 2021 2311678 2,311.678
228,300 228,300

At30June2022  2539,978
Accumulaiéd irﬁpairrﬁen&

AL 30 Jure 2027 195,312 195,312
Reversal of impairmeants (195,312] 195,312)
Irnpairments - -
At 30 Juna 2023 T
Net book value

At 30 June 2022 2,539,978 2,539,97
R3O0 Gune 2021 o 218385 2116366

2,539,978

=ndo LUP a lerding

2rido LLPin Octoger 2012 wath

P S gy - - o
Ll funics Ferr has a smal s

I
b

IMe s e Ferns mvestment 1o Bracken Tradng Lirrites at 30 Jare 2022 wa
L

sider Teqdo LiF o Brac<er Tradng miten to ce subs 2ary Jrdertawngs of Fern
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
L T L S
Cash incindes casn in hand and deposis repayab e on dernand.

Restr cted cash represants cash for which tne Group dees not nave mrediate and arrect ascess or for
which regulatory or legal requiremerts restrict the use ¢ the cash,

Group
2022 2021
£'000 £000

BORULIPINRRTRIET VHE § % 0 ureTORAFAN G LRAPAYRARE S50 LAY CEARE BXR 16N HY ba Dy 68 KUY AR Uik nh b batha kbR b x b § 26 mam b o st on 1St SO TR TEEERL FIHTA T B SRR TU L Y Aok BN AR AR

Cash at bank and in hand 195 823 117141
F";)fl’\d(‘d as 60,592 5J 3

Cash at bank and in hand N 256,415 172478

Restricted cash ¢ comprised of £726 000 hed n “scrow and 755 886,000 of cash held in subsid anes with
Lr-arnual distr butior w naows.

-

The Compary had a cask balance of £6422000 as at 30 June 2022, none of wihick was restrcted {2027

2021
£000

/‘A'\S]f;‘S‘YOCL{ o 2155
Fuel, spare paris and censumables 26,023 18,563
Property devet oomem W 156,918 73923

184,479 94,711

The amount of stocks recogrised as an expense dunrg the year was £120,413.000 (2021, £41,212,000)

Included in the fuel, spare parts ana consurmables stock vaiue is a provision of Z330,000 for unusable fuel
stock (2021 £459.0000 Including in property developrnent WIP 15 a provision oF £928.000 forwarranty and
site spachic crovisions

There has beer no imgairment recogrised during the year on stock (2021 noneg) No inveriory has oeen

piedged as security for vabilities (2021 nonel

The Zompany had na stocks at 30 June 2022 {2021 nonel
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
i3

Group Company

irestated)
2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £'000 _Eo00

Amounts falling due after one year
Loars anc advanices t custonmers 137,662 16,128 - -

Amounts fatling due within one year
LDars ano agvanoes 1D Usiomers 223,239 269,384 - -
Trade debtors 42,050 16,121 392

o

Aracunts owed by refated parbes inote 24) - 3,950 32,950 12,751
ther debtors 20,195 24972 %843 5008
Corporat on tax - 6,602 2,527

Dervative anancia nstrameans inote 71 54,409 8,469 - -

Frepayments an

145,602 154,375 176 32,616
623,161 598,002 395,888 50,383

s of £13,874 200 (2021 £18,199, 0001
sions oF E7739,000 (20220 £137£1.000

i charged on amourts owed by Group Jrdertak ngs, as tre cutstanding bawances are ursecured
2 ¥ o el

&)

and repayahie on dermand (2021,

909,
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L R R

i

Group

2022
£000

SRR BRE B ERA DA AR MR R ARRY 8 b

Harx loans and overdraft

Trade credirars

Orner taxalon and social secunty

Cither cred tors

Amrounts due 1o relaied parbes (note 24)
Finance eazes (ncie 16

Deryat ve nancial nsiruments (nobs 23]

Accrias and defered income

R g

87.732
58,004

8,161
24,362

2,428

75,465

256,152

{restated)
2021

Company

2022 2021
£000

76 16
- 20,203

373 2.705
449 22,524

£000

[ Y et

2ank loans and overdrafis {note 16)
Frarce leases note 19;
Serivative financial instrurrents {(note 213

Cither creditors

Group
2022 2021
£000 £000

R L

383,070 247297

5,899 6,125
5.364

5415
394,333

258837

Amounts falling due after more than five years

N o 0 B et S B o R

Bank 'oans znd overdrafts incte 16)

Fnance eases inote 16)

™
T

vatve financial instruments (note 21;

Total creditors failing due afier more than one year

Group
2022 2021
£000 £000

573,416 577,235
24,676 24495

- 42772
598,092 644502
992,425 902,339

The Cormpany has no creditors due in greater than one year.

Armrounes owed o related parties are unsecured, non-nterest pearing and regayable on demand

Note 26 detzils the crior penoa adjustments.
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2022
Group E’OOO

2021
£ GOO

RO Rkt ane - e £ ebrdracenn nsaar 27O RERE RO AR Rt L R RLC LT S F VUSSRV TUDL ST D ANPUVIUIPUNE LT LTSRNV S SR

D i onie /cnr E7 732

Due between ore ana five yoars 383,070
573,416

1 044, 1,218

4/ 386
247297
577235

CarioE

The Company had no bank log~z at 38 Jurs 2522,

The bark lecans are secured aganst assets of the Group with cach loar as neld by the subsidiary

Interest rate

2rgy Lirnite
Cedar Friergy and nfrasiruciure Linmiac LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% -

2 month EURIBCOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70%

Llos Energy 3 12% + & month EURIBOR 56,079
Bocmerang Frergy Limitea 6 month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348

6.49% (swap rate of 4.59% +
1.9% rnargin)

nergy LY Lirmited 6 month SONIA plus 2 35% 85,718
VE Holdoo PTY Lt 17% + BBSY 31.614

. 5% + NIA + 2 5% non-
Ebvta | omes imised . 0 L 12,306
utilisation fee

30,946

Elies Lnergy &

Daringran Pomt Solar Farm Py Lenited 114,026

Molion Renewanle t

Dtanra

i

Jesler Assat Managenent Leited Fixed rate 2 5% 43

"6 month SONIA plus LEO% 429,138

1,084,218

871518

SONA repaced LIBOR as the effectve inierbak -endgng rate sysen from 1 January 2022

res lted in no cormnmercal moact w0 the busitess.

Finance leases

ne future mnimum Fnance leass nayments are as follows

2022

Ict later than one year 2,428
[ater than ore year arz rot laier thar Fue years 5,899

76,461
84,788
Less finarce crarge (51,735)
Carrymg amount of the ilablllty - - . ‘ 33,003

£000

Thie ~ate change

3156
5156
72,013
1375
(47609
33756

Tne Corpany had no france leases at 30 June 2022

Trers gre no coringent

. Fnance leases are
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Decommissioning {restated) (restated}
provision Deferred tax Total
Group E000 £'000 '000
AL Jupy 2021 20439 40(953 41,372
Increasa recogn.sed n proht and 1oys 21 11,495 11,516
Increase recogrsed trodgh other corhpreriensive income - 18,202 18.202
Imparnent 16 - 16
Increase recogrisea In fixed assers 23,656 - 23656
Recoqgrnsaed on subsidiary acquisior - {3.568) (3,568)
Adjustrent ir respect of pnor years - (5.465) (5.465)
srwinding of decount 249 - 249
Adjustrreert relzating 1o chango ir accoudr:ing esfireate: (3,373} - (3.373)
Cam on translation 15 - 15
At 30 June 2022 41 023 41, 597 82,620
The decommissioning provision s held to cover future obligaticns ¢ returr land on which tnere are
operatonat wind, tiomass and solar farms, to ther crigira: conditen. The amaurts are not expected to be
Utiliced “or in excess of 25 years
Tre Cormpany had "o provis ons at 30 June 2022
Note 26 detaiis the prior period adjustments,
A8 U0 L e s e e el
The Grouo and Company have the fol.owing share capita
Group 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid ‘E'DG‘JMOM £000
1,616,622, 511 (2021 1.456,755 258]
Cradirary shares of FO 10 gach 161,662 149676
Company 2022 2021
Allotted called- up and fully pa|d ) £'000 o £ OOO )
7 62 011 e 49 753 CB,
616 2z, )1 2021 1,496, 2 161,662 145676

Ordirary shares of £0.10 each

During the year the Grouo issued 119,866,754 (2021: 1,501,195,27% | ordinary shares of EO 10 ach for an
aggregate nominal vawe of 211987000 (2021 £150,120,C00). Of the shares issued during the year, 1oual
consideration of £203,750.000 (2021 £2.216.695.000; was pa:d for the shares, giving rise 'c a premium of
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191762000 (2021 2173118000 Dur ng tne year the Group purcrased »n (2021
10 each with an aggregate nomnai val.e of 321 £444,CDO} Totax cornsigarat on
SRl 2021, £6,392,0000

crdinary shares of £
of End {2021, 26,844 000) was pad for the snaces, giving rise tc a

twas forreed &8s part ©° 3 grouo

Tre Group nas adopted predecessor accountrg prnc.pies &
reconstructor, tnerefore the share capita: ard share premium accourt are treated as if they nad always
extted Moverrents i share capifal ansing Hoth nefore and after the restruciure arc reportec as rmoverments

n the Growup share cap @l

Diur ng 199,278} ord:nary shares of 20 10 =ach for ar
agygregate nominai val.e of £11 *)87000 20?1' £150 &P J.J\J, Of the shzres issaea durng the year, tofal
consideration of £203, 730 ””“J (2025 £2.31 ZWING rise 1o

the year the Company ssued 115

5,655,000 was paid for t

2 prevmaur of
a0

During tne yea Group ourch J205 of ts awr
each with an aggregats Jecf ota. Consgeral on

10) was pa'd for the share:, givin premiur CF S -’"441 £6,399.C030)

u:
In
.
O
o

vidlerds and tre

on the i

ordinary sharss

recaynert of cagitat

2wl o

Cash flow hedge reserve
The casr flow nedge reserve 5 Usen to recora transa

L ansing ‘rom the Croun's

dow

Fedging arrangemen's,

Merger reserve

Tne merger res noe between the far vaiue of the srgres scues and the book

val.es of ihe

e - . R . -~

&4
£

ne Mmovenant N

Group

Neote 2022 2021
£'000 £'000

3,721 8.570

AL Huiy 2

Sale of subsidiary Lngertak rgs and acGgestion i ,
’ ’ e : 27 (1,842)

OF ron-Canteoliing meres

=t

(6,622) 4.007)

(2,.901) 3721
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
2000 o

As at 30 June 2022 there were no cont ngencies across the Group or Company
oo AR T T :
Carrying amounts ¢f inanciat assets and liabill
Group Company
{restated)

2022 2021 2022
Group e s+ e i e b 008 ED00 £'000
Carrying amount of financial assets
Cebt instrurrents rmeasdred at amortised ost 423,150 420,556 4,235
Measured at far value trrougn profi and |ogs - £.46%5 -
Mezsured at far value through otner corrprehensive income: 54,409 - -
Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Moeasired at arorised cost 1,126,163 956,384 76
Measured ar falr value through other comrprehensive income - 42,772 -

2021

£000

PR v

17767

Note 26 detatls the pnor period adjusiments




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments

Tre Groun's francia. nsk management se O rriinireise the exposure to market ris<, aredit rsk, ligudity

and cash ficw rizk, and energy marxet 15k
a) Market risk

Energy market risk
The enerdgy satior 1S exsensncing sign

art turbuience and there is a ritk that forecast teve s o ircome are
not achieved due to changes in wholesale ene gy prices, off-rake contracis or government subsicies
Changes ir Government policy, or regulator ntervertion may result in recuces inccme sireams within the
group due (¢ acd Uonal l vies

Currency risk

Tre Grow presents its corsolidated francia

tements in sterling and conducts busimess N a number of

cthner carrencies, onnapaly Zuro and Australia— dollar Corseguently, the Grouo is exposed o foremgr,
exchafg@ risk cue to exchange rate movements, which affect the Group's ransactonal expenses a~d the

rransatan of earming and net as7 of s ron-siering ooershens

Transactional exposures
Transact.ora! exposures anse from admir

rawve and other expense 1~ Correncies oihier thar the Group s

f e -~

presertalional currercy Sterling The Group erters into forward

oreign exchanrge convracts ard fore'ar
excharge swaps o mitgale the exchange rate nis« for cerain foreigqn currency payables and recents The
forward currency contracis ard swaps are measured at fair value, which is determinea using vauation

echricues thst wilse obeervable inputs The

puls used in valu ng the de raard

exchange rates for GBPAUD and G3P-EUR. O 20 Jure 2027 the far value of tre fo
(2021 143,000

ourrercy

contracrs was an asset of Eny {2021 ££,44692 50C) ard a lability ¢

Translational exposures

Balance sreet ranslational expooarcs

)
W
9]
8]
=4
(]
9]
=
w
\
Q
J
)
=
8]
5]
v
I
T
-
jgs]
&
o]
3
’J
L.J
L
)
c
M
o
%3]
W
M
(]
o
n
%
g
iy
5
O
=

a
rnon-siering operat ors oo sterling, the

Sroap’
by management a~d the porental foreign n
herefore, tynically, the Group's policy 1o Notta actively hedge these expoiure

Interest rate risk
The Groun has exposure e fluctuatons nomie

bor-owing arracgerrents with flcairg rate rteres?, a s

A & rra"gcﬂ” nos entered nto o fixap
e 9

i
518 IMCresse In rig

re interest in order to rmitigate agai

in
35&53580 ON 3 Case by‘ case 5ast Man

rrangemenis on anndivicuel ransa

ne swacs are bazed o

Price risk

The Groun s a snor- 1 mea.um-ter . fproperty mar<et Tothe exlent mattrere s

tre level of nouse

23 tral the Grouo’s loans are sequred

ns< that tme G sure Thisis migated b/ e srort-term
r3anc the conse nat thie Group s pre
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Credit risk
Lstormer credit risk s mitated througn the Group’s crad t conro. podcies, wh CF are 17 dlace to ensure
that our customers have an appropriate Zred T history and are monioree on an ongoinNg Hass.

c) Liquidity risk
L gudity risk are rmanaqged Sy ensuning that suthcent Cash is avaitable o fund continuirg and ‘utare operations

Ligu-d: ry risk grizes 01 bank .oans r place across the Group and is manzaged tnrough careful monitoring of
covernants and sensibie ievels of debt Borrcwing 1s on a lorg-term basis, whereas cur rey

%k'rc:ugho\ut the y=ar, as weil as 1mterest and rederpt'cns on our short-term «oan boox Cash oW ris< IS
maraged through cngoing cash flow forecasing to ensure receipts are sufficient w meer katilives as they

fall cue

B2 0l e e

AL tne year eng the Group had cagital commitments az folows:

Q

2022 2021
E£'000 ) £000
\Jcmradfd fur but rot proy w(‘ed N nesa financi 347,254 90,156
Leadrawn faciiios Gn Gans 10 norrowars 173,600 92,6832

AL 30 June tne Group had otal future minincure lease peyments urder ron-canceliable operatirg 12ases

2022 2027
Land and Other Land and Cther
buildings buildings
e EOOO £000 £000 £000

Payments due:

Mot lztor than one yiear 8,707 661 8,031 749

Later than one year and ndi later than Ave 31,627 726 30.369 1,686

VEaSrs

Later than five years 95 664 - 118, 932 Y
135 998 1,387 157,432 2444

Under sections 3944 and 47%A of the Comoanies Act 2006, the parent -:omcamy Fern Trading Limited has
guarantead all cuistanding liabilitas on those comganies taking the exemptior to which the sussidiaries list
on pages 79 ¢ 90 were subject (© at the 30 cune 2022 unt.l they are sausﬁed i~ full, These labilives totas
£915m. Such guaranteas are enforceanle against Fern Trading Limited by ary person (o whom any such
tabilty is due

The Company had no cacita, o other comruimerts at 35 June 2022
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Cn 11 Juiy 2022, Fern Traang Development Limrired ('FTDL), a suosidiary of the Group, succassfully sold
Darirgten Zoint loldco Pty Lisnited 1o Sctopus Australia Mazter Trust A srrall prodt of £850,0C00C was made

On the istof Decampber 2022, the Group acsuirad nghts 1o 3 L25m cred:t voucher and the rignt 1o use
mobite jcerses from Trree UK vz 3 ;\trateg C C, rectvity Agreement, thus ma<rg the first siep 1owards
peccming an mobile virtual rietweork operater

Z4

Urder FRS 102 2314 disciosures need not be given of transactions snters

members of 3 Group, grovded that zny sups diary which s a party to the tra
such a memper

Curing the year, fees of £ tne Group by Qctoous

Investnents Liruted, a the entity Octopus Investments

Limitec was recnarged leg S16.000) by the Group AT e

_ﬁ
[

yesr end, anamaoort of £5 500 (2021 £2157000) was ouisianding which s included in trade creditors,

The Group i entiled to a proft share as & resait of its invesiment in Terco LLP a rested party due to key
-3 share of prefit equal to £5,249,000 (2021 £445 600; b
the Group At the year e~d, the Group has an interes i tne memiber's caorat of

- 032,008 and accrued income gue of £5 275,000 (2021, £4732.0040)

rgages in lendicg actvites wh ok inclu { G
Les with ®ey management perscnne. N cemmor, loans ©° E63.480,000 (2021 £173.2243C0)

2
roome of £19789.000 (2027, £26, 2020001 and defered incorme of [ (2021 £101,00C) v
O

at year end Durng the year 'r:te'es\ ircome of £7L60,000 {2028 217581000 and fees 0CC
£538,000) were recognised in relation 1o trese loans

Durng the year the Group acquired S reserve DOWEer COrMparies
Irvestments Lmted, arelatec party See notwe 27 a) for detalls of the compar

As at 20 June 2022 £n1 {2021 £3950,273) was owed to the Corpany Ly Bra

party Dy <ey maragement perionnel in cormrmon,

Cther than the tarsacucns disciosed apove, ne Company's other relaes party ransactiors were wih its

wholly ownes subsidiary nembers ¢° the Groun.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

26 - o umnames

a) Group structuring review

We have conducted a review of prior years’ accolnung treatment of mitercompany restructunng in this
-e

review misnagerment idenufied unamorised gooowill balances in relation to these transactions. YWe have
adjLsad the previous years o reflect the implementaten of amortisati'on backdaed to when the relevant

ransactions ocourred. Tre accumiiated impact “or the gooadwill armortisation in the profit and loss for 2021

was S8 (2020: £5 2m) the rrovermnent of £2 7r nas peen restaed througnout the 2021 comparative
numbers. A summary of mie imoact of the correction s provided below:
Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Grqq.lp * £000 £'000 £000
[Stele s 583,988 (5,335 578,653
Qeta ned earnings 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumutated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group ) ) £000 £000
Goodwall 602,711 {8.049)
Retaried earmings (123,920} 8,049 (115,871}

As part of the review of the INtergroue restructuring menticned above, managemeant idenufied one of tre
restructures had ceen ingorrectly accounted for in a sub section of the group. Mo ‘urther errors were
discovered in the review The accumulated impact for goodwill smortisation in the profit and .oss for 2021
was £2 5m (2020, £1 3mi), tra movement of £1 2m has been restated throughout the 2027 comparative
numbers Ths mipact to thre 2020 cpening retained carnings was offsel by £2.1m wiitten back agans: bad
debt expenses Management have correctad the idertfied error with the foliowing impact:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

(as stated) (restated}

Group o £o000  £'000 £'000
Coodwil - 583088 (29183 554805
Retasied earmings 41,185 899 42.084
Cebrors 842,549 (2.724) 839,825
Creditors: amounts falling due within ore yoar (232,813) 456 {232.317)
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) (restated)

Group o ’ o £000 £'000 E'000
C::(,;,WK*M e LBt e+ i eresatnans s 2R3 AT R Grans - e
Retaired carmings (123,920) (321) (124,241)
Dentors 600,726 (2,724j 598,002
Creditors arnourts falling due within one year (207,318} 496 (206.822)
Fixed assets 1551170 30,512 1,581,682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment
We have conducied a review of all corsolidztion entries ar sucsections of e groun. We rave denthed an

errar relatng to 2019 wnen deferrad tax adjustmerts were entered as a consolidation entry and had
subsequenty not bees reversed, We have criacked e tax per subsidiary account and have ensured that e
relevant balances are correct Tre error was posted an a consol dated level ony and has now been correcrag

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)

Group o E'C00 £ 000 £000

EERUEE AT RN E R T EERR TRV E R abuk anan o s manwvn ca e an S0 USSR SRR A AR R AT ST ERRUB eme B ie LSSERAEE RN SR bhnhe

Retared earmings 41,185 (4764} 36,421

Creddors amounts fall g due watnir one yvear (232,813 4,764 (228,049)
Tris has a knook effect into June 7021, tne restated baarnces are as folows
Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £'000

PR 18 AR 10 £ EE R e £ BT aEuE 3 \Bmnmahaees mw wrer o € i s Serrrter bEEER mamaneexs o SwinkatEeEe excaTes w o o L L L N

Retamed earrirgs (123,920 4,7¢4) (128, 684}
Cred lon amouris fanng duo withnr ane yezas (207.518) 4,764 (202,554}

N prepanng the lax corputations for 2022 me Group's tax advicors —ave notced an averooked
AIZUrIDUGN 10 previous years tax consohdaton caleulators Wanm the previously unrecognized deferrac tax

assets bele with in the group some were avalabie o0 a consoudated leve, 1o offse! the Group's deferred tax

g

labnty Or anircividual company basis the der’érr.&d tay In previoLs years had been correcly recogrised

efarrad assats are in retzticn o cash Sow hedoes ~alo witkin the greun whiem are accourted

par: of
for within ctrer cormprenensve income. T
for 2021 was

comparative “urmbars

re accurrulaed mpact for the tax charge nthe pfoh
EiBrn (2020: £15 3 ) tre movereant of 300K has been roctated througrowt the 202

Asurary of the mpact of the correct.on s orovided telow

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated} (restated)

Group o £000 E*OOO £000

Reta-ned earm ngs 41185 (15,299} 25886
Cazh fiow hedge reserve 63,837 (3.875) 52,962
Deferrent tax grovisiors 136,484) 19,174 (17, OJ
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Growp 0 ‘
Cash flow necge reserve {2,119) 14,979
Deferred tax provisions o 17212 (20,933)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)
£000 - £000 £'000
e S 41185 kkkkkkkkkkk - MHB,SZQiWM . 27,356w
Conawil 583,288 (34,517} 549471
842,545 (2.724] 835,825
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1,377,167
LCefarred tax 0rov siG6s (36484) 18,174 {17.310)
Cash flow negge reserve 63837 (2,875) 59,962
Credirors armounts falling dis within one year (232.813) 52559 (227.554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
£°000 £000 i
) 123,920) (2159
Gooohwb 602,711 (36,011)
Centors 600726 {(2,724) 508.002
Fixed assets 1551170 30,512 1,581,682
Deferred Lax prov sions 138,145) 17,212 (20.933)
Cash fiow nedge reserve 17098 (2.119) 14.97G
Creditors arnounts fallirg due within ore year {207.318) 5,259 (202,059)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
BE e o s oL

a) Reserve Power acquisition

o

On 2 duly the Group acquired 9 reserve power sites through the purchace of 100% of the share capita.

for corsideraticn of £18
The folowing tanies sumimar se the coradarabon paid by the Grouo, the fa vaue of the assels acgured

and the idabiites assumed at the acguis.tion date.

Cons:derat:on

Total consideration -

Detans of tre far vale of the net assets acgdired and goodwil ansig are as “oiows.

Book value Adjustments Fair value

£000 - E000 5000 )

o 1rp e e e e 80 788‘ e o Rg 93f
racde ard otber recevan e 294 - 294
Prepayments 635 - 635
Cash and cash eqguvaleots 7H58 - 7858
Tradle ang other creatons (2,206} - (2,2086]
Loans (58.816) - (58,816)

Net assets acqunred 28,553 {28,553) -

Total consideration -

Goodwll resulong from tne busir ess conbraton was ¢ L

ervient OF carmiprehensve noorn

ar
£SEL 000 nrespect of ths acquis U

s
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Doveryard Limited acquisition

On 22 October 2021 the Group acquirec Doveryard Lirited and its subsidiary through the purchaze of

100% of the share cawtal for consideration of £13, 414,

a20.

The folowing tables summarise the corsideration paid by tne Group, the far value of assets acquired. and

tiabilities assumed af the acguizition date

Consideration

s n RS 2 o swmb b G S e w00+ SuTa Dadwadod RTINSt crmus

Cash
Directiy attricutable costs

Total consideration

AR R G AT R 6T A E AR R R B n SR M R A fr e o

o E000
12 377
1057

13,414

air value of the net assets acqu red and

aqoodwili arisirg are as follows:

Book
values

£000 £000

Adjustments

Fixed assats

Trade anc cther recevables

Pregayrents and accrued income

it 28 DR O B

569 -
52 -

193 -

Fair
value

£'000

R L T ————.

569

vears, reflect’'ng the hfespar of the assets acquired

—

before tax of £123,000 in respect of tris acqguisinon

he corsclidated staternent of comprehensive income for the year includes £nil of revenueg and a loss
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

c) Dulacca acquisition

Or 27 August 2021, tme Group acquired Dulacca WE —oldoe 2TY Lid and its three suosiaianes through the
purchase of 100% of the share captal for consiceranon of £2.2,680,000

The foilowing tables summar
and the saciities assimre ot ine aoau sihior dare A list of the entites acgu red inciuded in note 29

e the consderat:on pard by the Croup, the fa r value of the asiets acquired,

) AUD’OOO

LR IR EOE R MRSk aBEE e d nbh nAnBn e an s SRR R £ N

115, 085
595

Dires *iy attrioutable Coss

Total con5|derahon V h o 218,683 S 1.15.680

Cetals of the fair value <f the net assels acquired and intangible anz ng are as fol.ows:

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair

values value vatues value

AUDODO AUD 000 AUD'DDD o £000 ] £000 EOOD

frade and other recervan.es 10,131 - 10,131 5,557 - 5,357
Cash and cash enquivalers 103072 - 103072 54,625 - 54,525

. o rlcr(:' ad ncome: (l_) 9f2 - ('LO 9'55, (5 79 Z} - (E 793]
Net assets acqulred 209 884 - 209 884 111 026 - 111 026
It mqwt e 799 4 654

Total consmeratmn . - a 218 683 115 680

ntangibles resulting fror the asset purcnaze was 24,654 000 and nas an estimated Jse’ul e of 30 years,

reflecting tre lifespan of the assets acguires

Tre

nszoldaten staterment of conrprehenave ncome ‘o the year -ncudes £ni of rovenue and g lose afrer
rax of £217 200N respect of this acguiztor,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2027, the Group acquired Zestec Asset Mangerment Limited a proje

2t scurces for rmoftop
solar, tnrough the purchase of 100% of the share capital for consideration of £4,765.000.

The foliow:ing tables summarise the consideration paid by tae Grouo, the fair value of azsets acquired. and
dabilities assumed at the acquisiion date

Consnderatmn i £'000

WS w momam e egs 4o ERA SRR YA A SRR 4 EREY S PR AR I00 R 4 T AE AT RV TR AR s B S G Tt GURR B ok R AR A L S BB EAT AR g e

3672

R

it

(.a
Zeferred considerat.an -
Directly attrib 1,093

Total consideration 7 . o 7 4,765

Getailz of the far vaue of the netassets acaured and gooaw L ansing are as follows:

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

B R €000 EOOC E000
T;fed S S —— T e R S 156:

Trade ared orher credirorns {574) - {574)

“rade and other recewables 400 - 400

Cash and cash eqguivalents 1,019 - 1,019

thc\r loans (4F“) - (46)

Net assets acqunred 7 955 - 955

G(;od 3,810
Total consideration 4,765

Coodwill resulting from the buziness combination was £3,310,000 ard has an esumated useul hfe of 10
years, reflacting the estimated lfespan of the assets acquired

The conschdated statermnent of comprehensive income for the year includes £198.000 of revenue and a loss
sefore tzx of £494 000 1n respec! of this acqguisition,
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e) Elivia Homes acquisition
n 23 May 202z, tne Groun acquired

1C00% of tre share

Tre foilowing tables summar se the <o

lagilities assamed at tne acguisition da

Ccnmderahon N g’oon
EriDL 685
Tolal cor;;.lﬁderatlon 7 B ) ) ) ﬂ ’ ’ 31534

capital for considerat:on o

“hvia H

rsigieration paid by the Groug, the a
2. A lst of the entiies acquired are ncluded in note

52000

c:idings Limited anc its subsidiaries, through tae purch
fE216

rvawe of asset

Details of the fair value of trie net asse

Trade and othar deptos
Cash and cash eguivalents

Aocruals anrd defered moorre

N

Provigions

Deerrec tax

NG O{W r Fr( (* torf

Net assets acqmred
Gooaw

Total consideration

tS Cmu|p_.p

and geodwil arising 2

Book
values

£000
" a1s
11767
69910
2,609
11,603

(420)

(920}
£.000
(69.453)

3, 533

s follows

-~
M
o

Adjustments

1

£000

Fair
value
£'000

418
11767

659,959
2,609
11603

(42

(530
2,600

1£9.453)
mm30 1‘.';3
) ”1,551

31,684

xwnanroaauuUN I

Tre cersold

1,000 ans by

as an estier

wated uscefun

o Lo
ne G e

Ir incuudes revenue of £25 034,000 and a

oroft \,Pfofﬂ tax of £1.502 000 i~ respect &f s aCouIsnionr
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Our reported resulis are prepared in accordance with Unied <ingdom Accounting Srandards, including
Financial Repartng Standard 102, as deta lea in the Firancial Statemerts starting on page 35 of tre Annual
Regort. In measuring our performarce, the Inancial measuras that we use nawde those that have been
denved fror cur reported resuits in order to eliminate factors that d stort year-or-year compansons These
are consdered non-GAAP financiatl measures

Net debt
We provide net defit in additon to cash and gross debt 2s a way of assessing cur oversll cash poothon and ¢

s computed 3s follows:

2022 2021
Note £'000

it A 8 vttt S g YO R 0 T AR R 6 PR R PR R DAY B b B8R AR B £ B s svnn o £70 L D AR B S Mt 0 R SR § 40 b R B RV 2 i e

Bank toans ara overdrafts s 1044218 871,918
14 15 5364 -

Eirossdélhﬁm . - 1,049,582 871,918lw

11 (256.415) {(172.478)

793,167 | 699,440

Cash at park ard in nand

Net debt

Pyt
g
St

ity
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
EBITDA

Earnings before interes:, tax, deprecianicn amd amacriisat on CER.TDAT s cacuwaled by agjusting profit after

tax for interest, tax, depreciation and arncrusation, in addition to .ncome and expenses that do rot relate to

the day o day ogerators of the Groun We provice 2B TDA In adgit o~ 1o orofit alte

assess cur perfiormance weonout the effects of inarcing and capital excerditures

Tre folowng table dewars the adjustments made to the ceported resuits

{restated)
2022 2021

R T A TR 4 e S T 05 R R S B N T e S O L ST N CT

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 21310 (31.012)
Add
Arnorisaton of mtanginle assets 2 37.849 37704

7913

Irpairrnent of mtarg b assets

[ea]

Depreciator of tanghle asses 2 101,802 84,657
Irterest payatile and sirrilar cxpenses 51 33554 36,067

Exceptional items 1105 -
Tax 7/ 16,294 8,349
Less

[Enletelnuloll frola i dad ars

rhved gsset invest nents (5,249} (449)

Share of operatna Hroit in jont ver sure - (1,755]
Pre:ht o aispesal of subsidunes (29.532) (28,568)

{130} {397
EBITDA - | 194,916 104,036

5]

Note 26 details the pricr pencd ad usiments

|
|
i
i
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Details of the subsiciary undertakings are as follows:

Name

S T LN VPP S

Abbots letom Sclar Energy Iv%c:Ldir;—r; L\mtnd
Adalinda Sclar SPV 1 Limited”™

Agrisol-7 SARLY

Al Newworks Lenited”™

Allpoints Fibre Limiteg®”

Auchercarroch trergy Limited®
Augurrie Larag Comrpany Lmited!™
Averiue Solar —arm Limited”
Banbury Fower _imitad”
Batsoiaice 5 SARL®

Bawsoiaire 7 SARL”

Beetiey Energy Limited™
Beightar cnergy Limied
Beinneur Wiond Farm Lid™
Bellrouse tnergy Limied”

Birch Estate Soar Limied™

Blabyy Solar Farm Lirmited”

BNRG ICW Lirited™”

Bolam Ernergy Limuted™
Baomerang Energy Limited
Boreas Energy Limited™

Bratton Flerming Limited™

Breck Souar Lirmiteg™

Bryn ¥r Gdyn Solar Developments Heloings
Lirmuted”

Bryn Yr Odyn Sclar Developrnanss Limited”
Bury Power Limited™

Cadorton Reserve Power Limiteg™

Caicias Energy Limiteg”™

Cark Lirqited®

S i PR -

Country of Class of
incorporation shares ‘ ﬁc&dipg )
UK Ordmar;m\ lOD;/n
UK Crdinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 150%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK QOrdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
France Crdinary 100%
France Ordinary 106%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 160%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
Ireland Ordinary 100%

Principal

activity

Holding company
Erergy generation
Energy qeneration
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company

Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
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Name
Caswel: Solar Farm Limited™

Cathken Erargy Limitec®™

Causilgey _mitog™

Cedar Erergy and in“rastructure _rmited

CEZC Berceronre SAR_

Certrale Eol erine de Producaon d Srerg-e de

Grarabo:ss SARLY

E
CEASSAY

Creison Maatow [nergy Limted™
wsbon Soiar Farmy —oldings Limmitad™
Crattening Solar Two Lirnited”
CHgwyn Energy L mited’

Cianr Farm _imitec™

Clararnons So.ar SPY L Limeted™

Co® Developments Lir tad”

CLP Ervircgas Lrrited™

ROC -2

0
]
m
U
Q
(,
|
[0
|
3
T
[&]

D

=TI e

) SARLT

Country of Class of
incorporation §b§res Holdﬂiﬁng‘
UK mqurdlnary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 160%
UK Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Crdinary 100%
Frarice Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Crdinary 160%
France Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Orchinary 100%
UK Ordinary 1007
UK Crdinary 100%
LK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 160%
UK Grdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 160%
UK Ordinary 100%

Principal
activity

Ernergy generat.on
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Holding company

Frergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generat on
Erergy generatian
Energy gereration
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy gereration
Darmant company
Energy generation
Energy generat.on
Dormant company

Prowision of Ofm
services

Dormant company
Dormant company
Hotding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fnergy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Name __incorporation shares  Holding _activity

CLPE ROC - 34 Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE RQOC - 4 Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE ROC - 4A Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Clyne Power Limized™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Colsierworih Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Connon Bridge Energy Limiteg™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cotesbacn Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Cour Wind Farm (Scotand) Limiteg*®™ UK Crdinary i00% Energy generation
Crapnell Farm Lirmited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crayferr domes [South Coast! Limered!! UK Ordinary 100% Elj\llc?‘[r?gp:'ri:;cotfs
Crayfern Lirmited!! UK Ordinary  100% Sg;i;’;itfu’?‘;fngs
Crayferr Sunley (Sinfold) Limiteg"” UK Ordinary  100% Elj‘l’;':;gzzg
Craymarsh & mited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cressing Solar Farm wmited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Enargy generation
Culvery Power Lirniteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cynon Power Lirnited”™ LK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Dafer Reserve Power Lim ted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dairy House Sclar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
DCeepdale Farm Selar timited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Doveryard Lirieed™ UK QOrdinary 100% Energy generation
Crapers Farm Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Ernergy generation
Dulacca Erergy Project Co PTY g™ Australia Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacca Erergy Project FNnCo 2TY Cid!? Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Dulacca Energy Project Holdoo Co PTY LiaH Australia Ordinary 10C% Energy generation
Dulacca WF Holoco Py Lid?? Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Oyffryn Brodyn Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Eakring Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Flacsol Camargue SARL® France Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Elecscl France 7 SARL? France QOrdinary 0% Energy generation
Eecsct Frarce 11 SARL? France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
Eiecsol France 15 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Flecsol Frarce 19 SARLY France Crdinary 100% Energy generation




4 | FINANC AL STATEM

7

(1S 50 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Hlecso, Franc
Fiecso. Franc

Eleczc Franc

s0. France

Elecso

Elecso

(A
(V4
S

- a4
e 22 SARL
e 24 saR?

a
2l

e 28 SARL®

L

4

oy o py B
28 SARL

i France 41 SARLY

DRau Var saR

Elios Erergy 2 Lirrited

Elics Erergy 2 France SAS

Flics Erergy Holding: 2 Cmited™

Chos Energy Heldings 2 Lmited™

Elios Energy Heldings _itritea™

Flios Renewa

ble Energy Limited™

Eiva Development Finance Limited!t

Flvia Haidmgs Lirmited

Elvia momes

Elivia SHomies

Elivia Homes

Ehvia wames

Elivia Zores

(Certral; Lmited®?
(Cormant 2; Lirmed:
Zrange Road) Limitea™

{Newley) L mited?:

< (Southern) Limited*t

¢

Surbior) Lrrtegts

Lenorargtt

Elivia Sarik Lir ted™

Elivia Zxfora Umitsa

1

Elivia Sourn _mted'

Country of

incorporation

France
France
France
France
France
France
France
UK
France
UK
UK
UK
UK

Ui

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

Uk

UK

UK

1K

UK

shares

Class of

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Deferred
Prefererce

Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding activity

Principal

100%
160%
160%
100%
160%
100%

100%

160%

1007%

Energy generation
Energy generat:on
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding cornpany
Helding company
Construction of

domestic buildings

Financial services
holding comparies

Construction of
domestic buildings

Corstruction of
domestic buildings

Construction or
domestic buildings

Developmernt of
building projects
Construction of
domestic buildings
Construction of
domestic buildings
Development of
building projects

Developmen: of
puilding projects

Construction of
domestic buildings
Buying and seliing of
own real estate

Construction of
dormestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of

Class of

incorporation shares

Eavia Southern Lirn.ted®?

Elicompe Lim ted”

Crcrgy Nower Nosourccs Limstod™

EPR By Limitea™

EPR Eya Limited”

ERR Glarford Limited™

EFR Renewable tnergy Limited”

EPR Scotlsna Limitec?”

EPR Tretford Limized”

Eucalyntus Energy Haoldings Limiteg™

Euralyntus Energy Lirmited”

Feltwel. Energy L-mited™

Fern Energy Cour Hodings Lmized”™

Fera Energy Holdirgs Limitea™

Fern Energy Limited™

Fern Energy Wind =cldings Limited”

Fern Fibre Limited™

Fern Healthcare Holdings Limited™

Fern Infrastructure Limited™

Fern Renewable Energy Limited™

Fern Roofiop Solar (A) Limited™

Fern Reofiop Solar (2BDY

Fern Rocoftop Sclar (Zestec) Limted™
ern Trading Development Limited™

Fern Trading Group Limated

Fern UK Power Devaloprments Limited”

Fibrophos Lirmited™

Four Burrows Limitec™

Fraisthoroe Wnd Farm Limiteg™

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdmary

Holding activity

100%

100%

Principal

Construction of

domestic buildings
Buying and selling of
own real estate

Erergy generation

tnergy project
development and
rmanagement
SErVICES

Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
£nergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding cormpany
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Supply of fertiliser
Energy generation

Ernergy generation
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Name

YRR b % B Gehreet N It T

Garla Energy Limited®

Giganet Fibre Ltd

Giganet Lirm ed”™

Glerchamber Wird Tnergy Limited™*™
Crange Wind Farra Lirmnitedg™
Guardiride 5P z.0.0°

Harbourre Power Limited™

Hayrrnaker (Mount M Ltg*

Hayrraker (Natewaooal Aoldings Lirem ted™

Hayrraker (Natewooal Lud™

Hayrraker (Oaiards Foldirgs Liried”
Hayrmakaer (Gaxlards) Lta”™

Helm Poyver 2 Limited™”

Holmn Fower _mited

Higrer Kraop Farnm Lirmited”

Hill 2nd Farm Limited”
Haollarmoor Lirmited™

Hull Reserve Power (rrited””
Hursit $=v 1 Lamited™
Immiingham Fower Lirvted'™
lravel Power Limited™

Jemeszcn Road Znargy Lircited”
Jurassic miore Hoiangs Limiteg”

Fazre wrmined

Lentarm Solar rnted”

Leddon Power Lomited”

Holding activity o

Country of Class of
incgrpgratiop shares )

U‘f‘f\‘ Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 1G02%
UK Ordinary 160%
Poland Ordinary 100%
Ltk Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Qrdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Crdinary 100%
LUK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 1003
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
LK Crdinary 100%
UK Crdinary S0%
UK Ordinary 90%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Orainary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%

Principal

wbwheh wed bk b

Dicrmant company

Fibre network
production

Fitore network
production

Energy gereration
Energy generation
Ernergy gereration
Energy generation
Erergy gener.atiom
Holding cornpany
Energy generation
Holding cornpany
Energy generation
Hclding company
Holding company
Energy gererat:on
Energy genaration
Energy generaton
Energy gereration
tEnergy generation
Eriergy generation
Energy generaftion
Energy generation
Helding company

Fiore network
production

Energy gereration
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaiion

Fiore network
production

Energy generation
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Name

Lovedean Limited”
Lurminance Soar Limited™
Miz Sclutions Limited™
Manston Thorre Limited™
March Energy Lirrited™
Marden Fower Limted™
Marley Thaton Sear Limited™
Meadows Farm Lirnited™
Melbourn Solar Umited”
Meltor LG Erergy Limited”

Meltor LG Hoiding Limited”™

Melton LG ROC Limited™

Melton Renewable Energy (Holdings) Umited™

Melton Renewsabie Trergy Newco Lim.ted™
Melton Renewszbie Energy UK Lmited
ML HIL Farm Solar Jimited”™

Mirgay Farm Holding Limited™

M5P Decoy Ld™

MSP Strete Leg™

MS2 Tregassow Lirmsted™

MTS Hatchlanas Salar Lid”

Nevern Power Limitec™

New Row Farm Limited™

Newlards Solar Limited”™

MNinnig Farmm Lomited™

Morth Perrott Froit Farm Limnited™
Northwich Power Limited”™

NS Znergy Limitea”

Cgmore Power Limited”

Oldhall Energy Recovery Holdings Limited™

Cre Ashiord Heatthcare Limited

One Hatfield Hospital Limited

- BREAC BERS SRR R BN R

FEE

Country of Class of Principal
mi%ncorporation Shar?f.ww.‘ Holding activity
UK . Crcﬁnary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary  100% ?ij;ff;‘”g
UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 150% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 9% E;{z\‘ﬁfQSZervices
UK Ordinary 90 Provision of

heaithcare services




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Sotmmas e e ey s et R ATETR RS ERY % 5 % %as % N L pn ee sRr eomew %o s s ke o

One Healthcare Partners Limited

Cria Wedgebili Solar RHold ngs Lirmited™

Crta wedger:l! Sclar Limited™
Faifreys Bartor Lirmted™
Farciau Holdings L mited”
Parciad Limitec™

Park Broaaband Lim ed™

Pearrmat Soar 2 Ld”

e

Fitcntord (endoyer A-fed & Stockbaton)

Limited™

Pitts marrm dimited”
Portnos Sotar Limited”
Pyrmis Lane Solar Lud™

Gueens Par« Road Energy Lirmted™

Rangeford Care Lirmitad

u
m
(\

[Rangeford Crerteay Limitea™

Rzngetord Cirercesier Limitec”

Rargeford Dor<ng Limited”™
Ramgeford Fodings Lirmed”

Rangeford Pic<enng Lirmited”™

Farngeford Retirerment Lving Holdirgs Lud™

tasletorg L oted”

Reacres ks )

3rem Lirmites”

SFP Fbre Lrrited®

Country of

incorporation

UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

Ui

UK

Class of

shares

Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
QOrdinary
COrdinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Crdinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding activity

o bdinb ool e o L GHEH S R O

85%

100%

a8

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

160%

1G0%

100%

160%

100%

100%
100%
1C0%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal

Heolding company
Helding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Halding company
Energy generation

Fibre netwaork
production

Energy gereraficn
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generat:on
Energy generation

Care services far a
retirement village

Retirement viilage
develepmeant

Retirerment village
development

Retirerment village
development

Holding company

Retirerment village
development

Retirernent village
development

Holding comparty

Retirement village
development

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat:on

Fibre network
product.on
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Name

Country of
incorporation

ancpEa S P

Singrug Holdings Limitec™
Singrug Limited™

Six Hilis Lane (Ragdate) Dirmited”
Skelbrooke Erergy Lirmted™

Slaugntergate Limted™

snetterton Renewable Power Fuels imited™

Snetterton Renzwable Power Hold ngs Lmized™

snetterton Renewable Power Lirnted”
Scolarfl LPO8 SARLY

Solarfl SPOL SARL

Solarfh SPOZ SARL?

Sclarh SPG4 SAR

Solarfi SPOS SARLS

Solarfi SPCA SARL®

Sclarh SP10 SARL®

Southcormbe Farm Limited”™

St Asaph Power Limited™

teadfast 2arkhouse Solar Limited”™

[%4]

Steacfast Rudge Solar Lid™

Steacfast Snipton Belinger Solar Lirnited™
Steilar Power Limited™

Stoneyhiil Energy Limited®

Suis Energy Limited”
Surnmerstan Energy Lirmitag?™
Suriey Crayferr Lavant LLPY
Swish Fikre Conzracting Limited®
Swish Fiore Limized?

Swish Fibre Networks Lid®

Swish Fibre Services Limited?®

Swish Fipre Yorksrire®

Swish Trading Limiteg™

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
France
France
France
France
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

Class of
shares

Holding activity ‘

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
NA

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
50%

100%

80%

100%

160%

80%

Principal

b 99 307

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Supply of bliomass
fuel

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Eriergy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Ernergy generation
Dormant company
Holding company
Ernergy generation
[N A

Fibre network
production
Helding cornpary

Fibre network
producton

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
production

Helding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

U2 Lirmited™

clar 107 L mitea™

TGO Solar €8 orated”

TGC solar 83 Lirvted”

The Fern ~ower Company Lirmited™
The Boldies Solar Farm Limitec™
Thoresby Esiate (Budiy) Lamited”
Tilngham Power Limiten™

Todrlls Encrgy Lmited”™

Treo

WO AP rmite
Turves Sowar Limited”
UKSE 25 Solar Limited”

Unitec Minies Erergy Limiteo
WZSE Ltd™

Victona Solar Limited™

Viners Energy Lmried

]

YVitr Linvte
Voltafrance 01 SARL!
Voltafrance G5 SARL®
Voltafrance 23 SARLS
Voltafrance SARLY

Yorboss Lmited”

Vorhoss US inc

Wadswiok Green Jmited”

Cp o ~ [T
Naaswic- Green Srooerty

- - it
BN CEE LITIHET

Country of

incorporation

UK
UK
UK
UK
IJK
UK

France
France
France

UK

USA
UK

UK

1K
UK
UK
UK
LJK
UK

Class of

shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Cirdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
COrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordmary

Holding

100%
100%
1007%
1007%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Energy geﬂcramon

Principal

activity

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gerneration
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Eneray generation
Energy generation
Energy generauon
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation

Finre network
production

Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
producton

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Helding cormpany

Fibre netwark
production

Retirement village
operator

Service charge
aaministrator

Energy generation
Hclding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

e e e i ACOTROMAtiON shares | Holding actVity i
Wﬂtlﬂmdef Eﬂergy Ll'"r it UK Ordinary 100% Erergy gﬂﬂeratlor“
Wharf Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Whiddon Farm Limited™ K Ordinary 1006% Ernergy generaticn
wWkhinney Hill Erergy Limsea™ UK Ordinary 100% Eneragy generation
Winceile Solar Hotdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Waolverhamptan Power Lid™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wird Farm Linited?” [§]:4 Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Bradfora Lirited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation :
WSE Auilavngton Holdings Limited™ LK Ordinary 10C% Holding company '
WSE Hulavington Limized” Uk Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
WSE Park Wall Limites” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation |
Zegiec Asset Managernent Lmited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Ferr Phoflop Sclar (BRD] Lirnired T o Yﬁ59}0yg;5023®m
Cuckoo Iniernet Lid 31/08/2022
veirifi Digial Linited 13/07/2022
406 Limited 2211112022

exernpi fror auait by virtue of s4804 of the Corrpanies Act 2006 !

s exempt from auds by virtue of $47%A of the Camparies Act 2006 !
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SINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dissolved or sold durmg the year and up until sngntng _Date .
B‘;Mrﬂem Houm S 26/P7/2041
Ridge Wind Acquisition Limited 20/07/2021
Fern Energy RicgaWind Acquissions Limited 14/09/2021
Fern Energy RiageWind Holdirgs Limited 21439/2021
Fern Energy Psrinershins Holdings Lirn'ted 20/09/2021
Fraisthorpe {Holding) Limited 29/03/2022
DY Ciddnali Energy Recovery Limited 13/09/2022
CommZi L 150972022
Darlirgton Point Helaco P:‘y Lirmutes 08/07/2022

Darlirgton Pomnt Solar farmm Pty Limited 08/07/2022
Carlirgton Point Subhodoo Pty Limited 08/07/2022
Nordic Power Develoomert Limreg 23122021
"U/f nkargas Wirc Farm Oy 23/12/2021
231242021

Tne registered aoffice of all compan’es lisied anove 5 at 6th Floor, 23 Hoborn, Lordaon, England, ECIN 2HT

except for those et out below
oooul Greyb

v Sootlang, EH3 8BF

z. Pirsen

5 &t Floor 2 Grarnd Canal Souare, Sublr 2, D02 AZ4L2, ireand
6 The Camage Mouse, Station Works, Steten Rcas. Claverdon, Wanw cksnire, United Kingdom, CV35 8PE

7 Zone i~dustrisie de Court ne 115 Rues Ou Moure'le 84000 Avignon, France

[RAl
3

8. 13 Zalshury Flace, Londan, 2rgiznd, WIH 7]

O

The Corporation Trust Cormpany, Corporanon Trust Center, 1208 Crangs Street. Wilbirgrer 2928C1L
] e

dnited States

15 4 Foor Sattire Court, 20 Castie Terqace, Edinkurgh, Scomand, ERHL2EN

11 Apolle Fouse, Mercury 2ark Wycemee Lene, Woob . Green, Higr Wycomzoe, triglanag, HPL0 GHE

i2 itevel 33 101 Colne Stroer Mebourne, Votora, 30050, Austral g

anguey, Hertforasire, W4 2R
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HCE PERFORMAN

Fern's share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trazing Limited is an unlstea company Every month, our Board of Directors Aagrees a prce at which i
3 ki i

will be willrg to ssue new shares The share price is unaudited

The fiigures below :nclude the share price of the previaus parent inow Fern Trading Growp Lim ted) as wel

as this entay

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18 &

17 (,/"J
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

B b b € e T C SR D T AR Sk R B RS B SR KRR R R R R 68 b B e e n e s 4 s e ne PR FT3 29

June 2021-22 9.91%

v .

June 2OZC~21 - - 4,.87%
Jweezoterc . o033%
Jurne 2018-19 7 - 6.23%
-Lurﬂ@éf]lﬁ—l? - V o - . .5.54%
June 2015-16 - | 7 3.783%
June 2013-14 3.72%
June 2012-13 ‘ ‘ 3.97%

June 2011-12 1.02%

Scurce Oclopus Investrients L mited, 2 sune 2022
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6 | COMPANY INFC

Directors and advisers

Diveciors

PS5 Latham

I Willey

PG Zarow

T Arthur (aopoirted 1 July ¢C22)

srpany seoretary

ctopus Camoany Secretanal Sery

Company number

Forward-locking statements

This Annua. Feport cortans

and firarcal perforrmance and future

performance

censirue

certalr

Lrrnzed

Orwa -0

eyents or d‘—\-\
knowledze anc‘ expectal ons of manage
o factors (hat are
expactation will be

represeniationr st such rerds or
e

future perforranc

Begistored office

£th Floor 33 He.bor,
Lonaon, Engiand ECIN 27

Indepandent audilors
Trnst & anmg LP
Bedfors House,

16 Badiord Sireal

elfast BT2 707

sl

art o assumpiors, ris<s amd sreartarlies. some

Nothirg in this Anma Renc




